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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

IEREREEEBIRR DM

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Group Results

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019 (the “Year”).

Hong Kong’s retail market has continued its upturn in 2018.
The number of tourists visiting Hong Kong, and among
whom those from mainland China, has been increasing
gradually. In addition, the retail market has been on an
upward trajectory on average, according to the monthly
survey of retail sales report published by the Census
and Statistics Department. However, the ongoing China-
US trade dispute has brought uncertainties to the global
economy. Fluctuations in the exchange rate of Chinese
Yuan and stock market corrections have impeded the
consumer sentiment to a certain extent; consumers have
been spending more prudently as compared to the past.
As impacted by such change in consumer behaviour, the
Group’s turnover for the Year decreased by 15.7% to
HK$2,437 million (2018: HK$2,892 million) with less units
of watches sold. Yet, gross profit only slightly decreased by
0.7% to HK$603 million (2018: HK$607 million) and gross
profit margin increased to 24.7% (2018: 21.0%) mainly as
a result of the Group’s ability to command higher profit
margin for its choice of products. Accordingly, the Group’s
net profit attributable to owners of the Company just slightly
decreased by 0.7% to HK$138 million (2018: net profit of
HK$139 million).

To show our appreciation for shareholders’ continuous
support, the Board has resolved to recommend a final
dividend of 8.0 HK cents per share (2018: 8.0 HK cents)
and a final special dividend of 13.5 HK cents per share
(2018: 15.0 HK cents) for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHREREEEFNWE DM

Business Review

As at 31 March 2019, the Group operates 61 retail and
wholesale points (including associate retail stores) in the
Greater China region. Breakdown by geographic region is as
follows:

Hong Kong BB
Macau SRS
China =]
Taiwan =
Total #BET

Reported by the National Bureau of Statistics, China’s
gross domestic product (“GDP”) has sustained with a 6.6%
yoy growth in 2018, representing a slower growth rate
as compared to the past. Driven by government policies,
domestic consumption has been a driving force of economic
expansion, which contributed 76.2% of the growth. Yet,
the continuous depreciation of Chinese Yuan has weighted
on consumer spending, which is reflected on a negative
yoy growth in China’s consumer sentiment index in the
fourth quarter last year. On the other hand, Hong Kong as
a global tourism hub, its retail market was also affected by
the fluctuations of the Chinese Yuan. On a positive note,
according to the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the number of
visitors to Hong Kong last year rose by 11.4% to more than
65 million, with mainland tourists increased by 14.8% to 51
million, mainly propelled by the openings of Guangzhou-
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link and Hong Kong-
Zhuhai Macau Bridge. The Group believes the openings
of these infrastructures will further attract more tourist
arrivals as they have made travelling between Hong Kong,
Macau and the mainland China much more conveniently,
and that will stimulate Hong Kong’s tourism industry and
gradually benefit the retail market. Oriental Watch, as a
long-established luxury watches company with extensive
foothold in Greater China, we will strive to strengthen our
leading position in the market and generate greater returns
to shareholders.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHREREEENWE DM

For the implementation of stringent cost control, exercising
adequate control on rental cost has been the Group’s
priorities since 2014. However, the Group has relocated
its flagship store from 100 Queens Road Central to 50
Queens Road Central during the Year, a premium location
situated in the very heart of the upscale spending area.
Group’s aggregate rental cost (excluding related property
management fees) decreased by 4.1% to HK$162 million,
accounting for 34.0% of the Group’s overall operating
expenses (2018: 34.9%). The Group believes that the
change of location will further fuel the brand presence and
the sales once it starts operation. In addition, regular internal
assessment on the performance of all retail stores and
closedown of high-rent yet non-performing stores are also
the Group’s strategy for better resources allocation. The
Group will continue to closely monitor the store performance
as well as the rental contracts from time to time in order to
maximize the profitability by improving our efficiency and
cost structure.

During the Year, the Group has employed policies on
inventory management to ensure stable cashflow and
healthy financial position. Policies included monitoring
inventory level of high-ticket products and purchasing
stocks only when existing inventory depletes to a pre-
agreed level. With the hard work and determination from
all staff, the Group’s inventory level has successfully been
maintained at a reasonable level. As at 31 March 2019, the
Group’s overall inventory level amounted to HK$824 million,
decreasing by 17.7% from HK$1,001 million as at 31 March
2018. In parallel, the Group has also continued to step up
its efforts in adjusting and optimising its brand portfolio, in
order to stabilise the Group’s overall sales performance and
keep abreast of market trend. Oriental Watch will continue
to maintain a lower inventory level for a better cash position
and a sustainable business development in the future.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ITEREREEEBIRR DM

According to the Federation of the Swiss Watch Industry
FH, the watch industry exports continued to gain ground in
March 2019, the total export value was 4.4% higher than
that in the same period of 2018. The Hong Kong market
remains the biggest importing region, which accounted
for 13.6% of the total Swiss watch exports. In the short-
term, the China-US trade dispute, instability of the Chinese
Yuan and uncertain global economic outlook may continue
to affect the retail market, however, in the long-run, Hong
Kong as a world-renowned city to tourists from across the
globe, will continue to gain ground and will benefit from the
recovery of spending appetite going forward. As a watch
retailer who is known for its long history and high quality
products, Oriental Watch will take prudent and effective
measures to boost the productivity of existing outlets,
monitor cost and inventory level, as well as improve its
product portfolio to foster the Group’s sustainability and
profitability.

On behalf of the Group, we would like to thank our
customers, suppliers, staff and shareholders for their
contribution, loyalty and unfailing support.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and financial resources

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s total equity reached
HK$2,214 million, compared with HK$2,317 million as at 31
March 2018. The Group had net current assets of HK$1,886
million, including bank and cash balances of HK$1,085
million as at 31 March 2019 compared with balances of
HK$2,009 million and HK$1,082 million respectively as at
31 March 2018. At 31 March 2019, bank loans of HK$63
million (831 March 2018: HK$75 million). At 31 March 2019,
the gearing ratio (defined as total bank borrowing on total
equity) was 0.03 (31 March 2018: 0.03).

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Management considers that financial position of the Group
is healthy with adequate funds and unused banking facilities.
The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s sales and purchase transactions are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group did not face significant risk from exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2019, our Group employed approximately
600 employees all over HK, Macau, China and Taiwan, of
which approximately 70% were located in Mainland China.
The total manpower is lower than previous year.

The Group’s compensation packages, includes basic
salary, commission, annual bonus, medical insurance, and
other common benéefits. It is structured by reference to the
marketplace and individual merits, and is reviewed on an
annual basis based on the Group’s policy’s performance
system and objective specification performance appraisal.

The Group believes every customer does have high
expectations on the services they obtained while shopping
for luxury goods. Thus, we must always try to provide
services beyond their expectations. As such, significant
resources have been allocated to the Staff Training and
Development.

In FY2016, the Group developed a series of training
programmes for our senior executives with diverse topics
ranging from leadership, personal development and
effectiveness, task and team management. Through these
programmes, enable our staff to improve their management
skills and help to bring in innovative ideas to the organization
as a whole.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEHREREEEFNWE DM

The Group have also commissioned an independent
consulting firm to conduct a continuous “Mystery Shoppers
Programme (MSP)”. This programme has helped the
management to gauge and monitor the overall service
performance of our sales team. By analyzing the results of
MSP, we are able to identify areas for improvements. The
management team has used these results to tailor-made
training programme to specific shop and individual level.

All these efforts align with the company’s philosophy of

providing “Service Excellence” to customer. Hopefully these
measures will help propel the company’s business forward.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. YEUNG Ming Biu, aged 83, the Chairman of the
Company, is a Co-founder of the Group. He has over 60
years’ experience in the watch business and is a Permanent
Honorary Director of The Federation of Hong Kong Watch
Trades and Industries Limited. He holds Honorary Fellow
awarded by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
Honorary Doctor degree awarded by Lansbridge University
of New Brunswick of Canada.

Mr. YEUNG Him Kit, Dennis, aged 50, joined the Group
in 1993. He became Managing Director of the Company
in March 2003. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce
from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Yeung is the
son of Dr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Madam YEUNG Man Yee, Shirley, aged 57, joined the
Group in 1991. She received a Higher Diploma in Business
Studies and Diploma in Watch and Jewellery Management
from North Herts College in the United Kingdom and CFH
Institute in Switzerland respectively. Madam Yeung is the
daughter of Dr. Yeung Ming Biu.

Mr. LAM Hing Lun, Alain, aged 60, joined the Group in
1992. He is the Finance Director and Company Secretary
of the Company and became Director of the Company in
April 2003. He is responsible for the Group’s accounting,
financial control and secretarial matters. He has over 32
years’ experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Lam
holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from the
University of Hull. He is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an Associate
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr. CHOI Kwok Yum, aged 64, joined the Group in 1969.

He became Director of the Company in April 2003 and has
over 50 years’ experience in the watch business.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dr. SUN Ping Hsu, Samson (“Dr. Sun”), M.B.E., J.P.,
aged 94, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since September 1993. He is the Chairman
of Sun International Group of companies. He was Deputy
Chairman and a Director of Gilman & Co., Ltd. and Inchcape
Hong Kong respectively from 1967 to 1985. Dr. Sun is
the Honorary Permanent President of The Federation of
Hong Kong Watch Trades and Industries Limited. He has
over 60 years’ experience in the manufacturing, marketing
and distribution of watches, and 31 years’ experience in
the marketing and distribution of consumer and electronic
products. He has involved in the PRC trade since 1979,
and continues to be active in both trading and property
development in the PRC. Dr. Sun has chaired many
voluntary community services and charitable organisations.
He was a Member of Basic Law of HKSAR Consultative
Committee in 1980’s. He is an Independent Non-executive
Director of National Electronics Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0213), and Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 0131).

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREERE

Dr. LI Sau Hung, Eddy (“Dr. Li”), G.B.S., J.P., aged
64, has over 40 years’ experience in the manufacturing
business. He is the President of Hong Kong Economic &
Trade Association and the Permanent Honorary President
of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
Dr. Li holds a Master Degree of Business Administration and
a PhD Degree in Economics. He was the 1991 awardee of
The Ten Outstanding Young Persons and the 1993 awardee
of Young Industrialists of Hong Kong. He has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 1993. He is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0894) and Chuang’s China Investments Limited
(stock code: 298), both of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. CHOI Man Chau, Michael (“Mr. Choi”), aged 63, is a
Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Choi has been practising public
accountancy in Hong Kong for over 26 years. Mr. Choi was
formerly an Independent Non-executive Director of Hunan
Nonferrous Metals Corporation Limited (stock code: 2626)
which was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
until its voluntary withdrawal of listing in March 2015.

Annual Report 2019
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHAN Sze Wing, Kenneth, aged 55, is a director of
our PRC companies. Hs is overseeing the Group’s operation
in the PRC. He joined the Group in 2013 and has over 25
years’ experience in the watch business.

Mr. YEUNG Chi On, aged 59, is the General Manager
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1980 and has over 37 years’ experience in the
watch business.

Mr. LAM Tung Hing, aged 61, is the General Manager and
overseeing the retail operation in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 2003 and has over 39 years’ experience in the
watch business.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERANCE REPORT
SHEABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain the high
standard of corporate governance as it believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental
to enhancing shareholder value and safe guarding interests
of shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company has
accordingly adopted good corporate governance principles
that emphasize a quality board of Directors (“the Board”),
effective risk management and internal control, stringent
disclosure practices and transparency and accountability to
all stakeholders. It is, in addition, committed to continuously
improving these practices and inculcating an ethical
corporate culture.

The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasize a quality board, sound internal control,
and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 March, 2019, the Company
has complied with the code provisions prescribed in the CG
Code set out in the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except
for the deviation from the Code Provision A.4.1 which is
explained in the following relevant paragraph.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Mode set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors (“the
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Code for the year under
review.
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THE BOARD
Corporate Strategy

The primary objective of the Company is to enhance long-
term total return for our shareholders. To achieve this
objective, the Group’s strategy is to place equal emphasis
on achieving sustainable recurring earning growth and
maintaining the Group’s strong financial profile. Management
Discussion and Analysis contain discussion and analyses of
the Group’s performance and the basis on which the Group
generates or preserves value over the longer term and
the basis on which the Group will execute its strategy for
delivering the Group’s objective.

Role of the Board

The Board, which is accountable to shareholders for long-
term performance of the Company, is responsible for
directing the strategic objectives of the Company and
overseeing the management of the business. Directors
are charged with the task of promoting the success of the
Company and making decision in the best interest of the
Company

The Board, led by the Chairman, Dr. Yeung Ming Biu,
approves and monitors Group wide strategies and
policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates
the performance of the Company, and supervises the
management of the Company (“Management”). Management
is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Group Managing Director and
Deputy Chairman.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Board Composition

At 31 March, 2019, the Board comprised eight Directors,
including the Chairman, Group Managing Director, Group
Finance Director, two Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. Biographical details
of the Directors are set out in the Directors and Senior
Management Section on pages 9 to 12. The composition of
the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound
knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group.

For a Director to be considered independent, the Board
must determine that the Director does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group. In determining
the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Role of the Chairman is separate from that of Group
Managing Director and Deputy Chairman. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence and
accountability.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to,
and overseeing the functions of, the Board to ensure that
the Board acts in the best interest of the Group and the
Board meetings are planned and conducted effectively. The
Chairman is responsible for approving the agenda of each
Board meeting, taking into account, where appropriate,
matters proposed by Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
With the support of Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly informed on issues arising at Board meetings
and provided with adequate and accurate information in
a timely manner. The Chairman also actively encourages
Directors to be fully engaged in the Board’s affairs and
make contribution to the Board’s functions. The Board,
under the leadership of the Chairman, has adopted good
corporate governance practices and procedures and taken
appropriate steps to provide effective communication with
shareholders.
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The Group Managing Director and Deputy Chairman, Mr.
Yeung Him Kit, Dennis, is responsible for managing business
of the Group, attending to the formulation and successful
implementation of the Group policies and assuming full
accountability to the Board for all Group operations. Acting
as the principal manager of the Group’s business, the
Group Managing Director and Deputy Chairman attends to
developing strategic operating plans that reflect the long-
term objectives and priorities established by the Board
and is directly responsible for maintaining the operational
performance of the Group. Working with the other Executive
Directors and the executive management team of each
core business divisions, he ensures that the Board is fully
apprised of the funding requirements of the business of
the Group and presents annual budgets to the Board for
consideration and approval. With the assistance of the
Group Finance Director, the Group Managing Director and
Deputy Chairman sees to it that the funding requirements
of the business are met and he closely monitors the
operating and financial results of the business against plans
and budgets, taking remedial action when necessary. He
maintains an ongoing dialogue with the Chairman and all
Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
development and issues. He is also responsible for building
and maintaining an effective team to support him in his role.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there
are three Independent Non-executive Directors representing
over one-third of the Board of Directors. Among the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, one of them have
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors the written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company based on such confirmation, considers Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Mr. Choi
Man Chau, Michael to be independent.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. However, the independent non-executive directors
were not appointed for a specific term but are subject to
retirement by rotation in annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
The management of the Company considered that there
is no imminent need to revise the letter of appointment of
independent non-executive directors by adding a specific
term in the letter of appointment.

Board Meetings and Practices

The Board meets regularly, and at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when
a board-level decision on a particular matter is required.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of the
Group provides information to Directors on a regular basis
on the activities and development in the business of the
Group. Throughout the year, Directors participate in the
consideration and approval of routine and operational
matters of the Company by way of circular resolutions
with supporting explanatory materials, supplemented by
additional verbal/written information or notification from the
Company Secretary and other executives as when required.
Details of material or notable transactions of subsidiary
companies are provided to the Directors as appropriate.
Whenever, warranted, additional Board meetings are held.

The Directors will receive details of agenda items for
decision and minutes of committee meeting in advance of
each Board meeting. With respect to regular meeting of
the Board, Directors receive written notice of the meeting
at least 14 days in advance and agenda with supporting
Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the meetings.
With respect to the other meetings, Directors are given
as much as notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances.
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Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or
her duty may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to update

their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group
through their initial induction, ongoing participation at Board
and Committee meetings, and through meeting with key

members of the Management.

During the year ended 31 March, 2019, meetings and
Directors attendance records for the meetings held are set

out below:

Executive Directors

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (7) = Chairman

HITEF

BRRE L) -&F

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis (7) - BITHESEE (1)
Group Managing Director — £ FE FE T

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley (7) HEEZ (1)

Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain — Group REE B o A
Finance Director —FEYBEE

Mr. Choi Kwok Yum ;L

Independent Non-Executive Directors BV IE#Hi7&EF

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson BRREE+

Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEELT

Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael 23 Q) b

Notes:

(1) Dr. Yeung Ming Biu is the father of Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis and

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley.
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Training and Commitment

The Company provides Continuous Professional
Development (“CPD”) training and relevant reading materials
to Directors to help ensure that they are apprised of the
latest changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory
environment in which the Group conducts its business
and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and as director of the Company. In addition, Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and Lam
Hing Lun, Alain attend external forums or brief sessions
(including delivery speeches by Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain) on
the relevant tropics. Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael has also
participated in CPD programs required by The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The directors have provided to the Company with details of
the CPD training undertaken by them from time to time.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and Board activities are efficiently
and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through the adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors and Board
Committees comprehensive Board agendas and papers.
Minutes of all Board meetings and Board Committees are
prepared by and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director.
All the minutes are sent to Directors and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and that it takes these into consideration when making
decisions for the Group. The Company Secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with all
obligations of the Listing Rules including publications
and dissemination of annual reports and interim reports
within the periods laid down in the Listing Rules,
timely dissemination to shareholders and the market of
announcement and information relating to the Group and
assisting in the notification of Directors’ dealings in securities
of the Group.

The Company Secretary advises the Directors on their
obligations for disclosure of interests in securities,
connected transactions and price-sensitive information and
ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in
the annual report of the Company.

In relation to connected transactions, regular seminars
are conducted for executives from business units within
the Group to ensure that such transactions are handled
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Details analyses are
performed on all potential connected transactions to ensure
full compliance and for Directors’ considerations.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors
on their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings
in the Group’s securities, connected transactions and
price-sensitive information and ensures that the standard
and disclosure required by the Listing Rules are observed
and where required, reflected in the annual report of the
Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. Whist the Company Secretary
reports to the Board through the Chairman and the Group
Managing Director, all members of the Board have access to
the advice and service of the Company Secretary. Mr. Lam
Hing Lun, Alain has appointed as the Company Secretary of
the Company since 1992 and has day-to-day knowledge of
the Group affairs.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
and the Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results of the Company are published
in a timely manner of the year end and the half year.

The following statement, which set out the responsibilities of
the Directors in relation to the financial statements, should
be read in conjunction with, but distinguished from, the
Auditor’s report on pages 65 to 70 which acknowledge the
reporting responsibilities of the Group’s Auditor.

Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Annual Report and financial statements
of the Company to ensure that the financial statements
give a true and fair presentation in accordance with Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group applies appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently applied and makes judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements of the
Group could be prepared in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Safeguarding Assets
The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and

to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.
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Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquires, consider
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future and that,
for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis in preparation the financial statements.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Board is satisfied with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(“Deloitte”) in respect of the audit fees they charged, the
process and its effectives of the audit and has resolved to
recommend their reappointment as the Company’s external
auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

During the financial year, the services provided by, and the
associated remuneration paid to Deloitte were as follows:

RIFELBEEERR ESRRAKEEAR
RWEREARARBERLE  SRAF
BREAMBBUBHRREBRE -

2 ) e

Exensty e MERS GstmT([1E
BAMEMBERZZBER  FitiBig
REBMIE - WHERERNERERRBF
RE FBEBEBERRDT ZIMNERZBIEAD o

RAMBFRER - B8R R LAE
Xtz HEMEmT

HK$’000

FET

Audit FETARE 3,190
Taxation and non-audit services T M FEEET AR TS 520
3,710
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-
executive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial management experience and skills to
understand financial statements and internal controls. It is
chaired by Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson with Dr. Li Sau Hung,
Eddy, and Mr. Choi Man Chau as members.

Under the term of reference of the Audit Committee, it is
required to oversee the relationship between the Company
and its external auditors, review the Group’s preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements,
monitor compliance with statutory and Listing Rules
requirements, review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
the activities of the Group’s internal audit functions, engage
independent legal or other advisers as it determines is
necessary and perform investigations.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by
the Board are published on the Group’s website.

During the year ended 31 March, 2019, 4 meetings were
held. The attendance records for the audit committee
meetings are set out below:

EEREE
EREEE

ERZZE MR BBUIFNTESAN
BEHEME T RY B RE LA EENS
ZEAEREEFEEERERT - B
ZESHARBBELEEER  KERF
FEtE L REXMNELE -

REEZZEGZHERE FXZES
ZRERRERARNFELIINERZEEZ
R BHAAKRBEZVIPRE  PHIRE

HEFMBRE  BEREAFER EHARL
BMEZETIER i ARB A ET B
2 TIEHE RREME  ERLER

ERREE AR EMER - LARETT
#E o

BEFEEMRNCERZZECRESRECDE
BN AN EE ML -

RBE-_T-NF=-_A=1T—HLFE
AN BRZEGRTTHREE - EKE
BEgmzhFasENmT

Directors’
Attendance
ESHER

Members of the Audit Committee ERZEEME
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson BREIEL 4/4
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy FHEFEL 4/4
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael BEUMEE 4/4

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under its terms of reference and other
duties of the Existing Code.
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Financial Statements

The Audit committee meets with the Group Finance Director
and other senior management of the Group from time to
time to review the interim and final results and the Interim
Report and Annual Report of the Group and other financial,
internal control and risk management matters of the Group.
It considers and discusses the reports and presentations of
Management, the Group internal and external auditors, with
a view of ensuring that the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. It also meets
the Group’s external auditors, Deloitte, to consider their
reports on the scope and outcome of their independent
review of the interim financial report and on their annual
audit of the consolidated financial statements.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external
auditors’ independence and objectively and the effectiveness
of the audit process. It has received representing from
Deloitte of their independence and objectively and holds
meetings with Deloitte to consider the scope of their
audit, approve the fees thereon, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if required, to
be provided by them. The Audit Committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the external auditors.

The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of Deloitte for
various services listed below is as follows:

e  Audit services — includes audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by
external auditors.
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Audited related services — included services that
would normally be provided by an external auditors
but not generally included in audit fees, for example,
audit of the Group’s pension plans, due diligence and
accounting advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
internal control reviews of systems and/or process,
issuance of special audit reports for tax purposes
(if any). The external auditors are to be invited to
undertake these services that they must or are best
placed to undertake in their capacity as auditors.

Taxation related services — includes all tax compliance
and tax planning services except for those services
which are provided in connection with the audit. The
Group uses the services of the external auditors where
they are best suited. All other significant taxation
related work may be undertaken by other parties as
appropriate.

Others services — includes, for example audit or reviews
of third parties to assess compliance with contracts,
risk management diagnostics and assessments, and
non-financial system consultations (if any). The external
auditors are also permitted to assist management and
the Group’s internal auditors with internal investigations
and fact-finding into alleged improprieties. These
services are subject to specific approval by the Audit
Committee.

General consulting services — the external auditors

are not eligible to provide services involving general
consulting work including accountancy services.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control

The Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its
responsibilities for maintaining an effective system of
internal control. It reviews the process by which the Group
evaluates its control environment and risk assessment
process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed. In addition, it review with the Group’s internal
auditors the work plan for their audit together with their
resources requirements and consider the report to the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of internal controls in the
Group business operations.

These reviews and reports are taken into consideration by
the Audit Committee when it makes its recommendations
to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
including two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy and
a Managing Director, Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis. Dr. Sun
Ping Hsu, Samson is the chairman of the Committee. The
Committee meets for the determination of the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management of the Group.
In addition, the Committee also meets as and when required
to consider remuneration related matters.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
assist the Board in achieving its objectives of attracting,
retaining and motivating people of the highest calibre and
experience needed to shape and execute strategy across
the Group’s substantial business operations. It assists
the Group in the administration of a fair and transparent
procedure for setting remuneration policies including
assessing the performance of Directors and senior executive
of the Group and determining their remuneration packages.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
adopted by the Board are published on the Group’s
Website.
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The remuneration of Directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
profitability of the Group as well as remuneration
benchmarks from other local and/or international companies
prevailing market conditions. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangement determined in accordance
with the performance of the Group and the individual's
performance.

During the financial year ended 31 March, 2019, one
remuneration committee meeting has been held. Throughout
the financial year, all members of the Remuneration
Committee have reviewed background information on
market data, the Group’s business activities and human
resources issues, and headcounts and staff costs. The
Remuneration Committee has also reviewed and approved
the proposed director fees for year ended 31 March 2020,
year-end bonus and remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year ended 31 March, 2019 and made recommendations
to the Board on the directors’ fees for independent non-
executive directors, however, do not participate in the
determination of their own remunerations.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee.
However, Executive Directors identify potential new directors
and recommend to the Board for decision. The Board
considers potential directorship based on the candidate’s
qualifications, business experience and suitability to the
Company. During the financial year ended 31 March, 2019,
no nomination meeting has held.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have a dividend policy or any
pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) will decide on the
declaration/recommendation of any future dividends after
taking into consideration a number of factors, including
the prevailing market conditions, the Company’s operating
results, business plans and prospects, financial position
and working capital requirements, and other factors that the
Board considers relevant.
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GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT, INTERNAL
CONTROL AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Role of the Board

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s system
of risk management, internal control and legal and regulatory
compliance.

In meeting its responsibilities, the Board seeks to increase
risk awareness across the Group’s business operations
and has put in place policies and procedures, including
parameters of delegated authority, which provide a
framework for the identification and management of risks.
The Board also evaluates and determines the nature and
extent of the risks that the Company is willing to accept in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic and business objectives. It
is also review and monitors the effectiveness of the systems
of risk management and internal control on an ongoing
basis. Reporting and reviewing activities include review
by the Executive Directors and the Board and approval of
detailed operational and financial reports, budgets and plans
provided by the management of the business operations,
review by the Board of actual results against budgets,
review by the Audit Committee of the ongoing work of
internal audit function and risk management function, as well
as regular business review by Executive Directors and the
executive management team of each core business division.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews
regularly the corporate governance structure and practices
within the Group and monitors compliance fulfillment on an
ongoing basis.
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Risk Management

The Group adopts an Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework which is consistent with the COSO (the
Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway
Commission) framework. The framework facilities systemic
approach to the management of risks within the Group,
coupled with a strong internal control environment, enabling
the Group effectively manage of risks it faces, be they
strategic, financial, operational or compliance. The main
features of the risk management and internal control
systems are to provide a clear governance structure, policies
and procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate
the Group to manage it risks across business operations.

The Group has established a risk management framework,
which consists of the Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Taskforce. The
Board of Directors determines the nature and extent of
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management
Policy in providing direction in identifying, evaluating and
managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the Risk Management Taskforce identifies risks that would
adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks according
to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established for those risks considered to
be significant.

In addition, the Group has established an internal audit
function to assist the Board of Directors and the Audit
Committee in ongoing monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. Deficiencies
in the design and implementation of internal controls
are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation actions are
taken.
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The Group Managing Director and Deputy Chairman and
the Group Finance Director have the responsibility of
developing and implementing risk mitigation strategies
including the deploying of insurance to transfer the financial
impact of risks. The Group Finance Director is responsible
for arranging appropriate insurance coverage including
Directors Liability Insurance to protect Directors of the
Group against potential legal liabilities.

Risk management report is submitted to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors at least once a
year and internal control report is submitted half-a-year.
The Board of Directors had performed annual review on
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including but not limited to the
Group’s ability to cope with its business transformation
and changing external environment; the scope and quality
of management’s review on risk management and internal
control systems; result of internal audit work; the extent and
frequency of communication with the Board of Directors
in relation to result of risk and internal control review;
significant failures or weaknesses identified and their related
implications; and status of compliance with the Listing
Rules. The Board of Directors considers the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are effective.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of Securities &
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in announcements are not false
or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact in view of presenting
information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

Internal Control Environment and Systems

The Board is overall responsible for monitoring the
operations of the business within the Group. Executive
Directors are appointed to the Board of all material
operating subsidiaries for monitoring of the operations of
those companies, including attendance at Board meetings,
review and approval of business strategies, budgets and
plans, and setting of key business performance targets. The
executive management team of each core business division
is accountable for the conduct and performance of each
business in the division within the agreed strategies and
similarity the management of each business is accountable
for its conduct and performance.

The Group’s internal control procedures include a system for
reporting information to the executive management teams of
each core business and the Executive Directors.

Business plans and budgets are prepared annually by the
management of individual businesses and subject to review
and approval by Executive Directors. Executive Directors
review the differences to the budget and for approval. When
setting budgets, management identifies, evaluates and
reports on the likelihood and potential financial impact of
significant business risks.
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The Executive Directors review monthly management reports
on the financial results and key operating statistics of each
business and hold regular meetings with the executive
management team and senior management of business
operations to review these reports, business performance
against budgets, forecasts, significant risk sensitivities and
strategies. In addition, Group Finance Director and members
of his finance team review monthly performance against
budget and forecast, and to address accounting and finance
related matters.

The Group Finance Director has established guidelines
and procedures for approval and control of expenditures.
Operating expenditures are subject to overall budget control
and are controlled within each business with approval level
for such expenditures being set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each executive officer. Capital expenditures
are subject to overall control within the annual budget
review and approval process, and more specific control
and approval prior to commitment by the Group Finance
Director or Executive Directors are required for unbudgeted
expenditures and material expenditures within the approval
budget. Reports of actual versus budgeted and approved
expenditures are also regularly reviewed.

Internal audit department reporting to the Group Managing
Director and Deputy Chairman on regular basis and also
directly to the Audit Committee if necessary, provides
independent assurance as to the existence and the
effectiveness of the risk management activities and controls
in the Group’s business operations. Using risk assessment
methodology and taking into account the dynamics of the
Group activities, internal audit derives its yearly audit plan
which is reviewed by the Audit Committee, and reassessed
during the year as needed to ensure that adequate
resources are deployed and the plan’s objectives are met.
Internal audit is responsible for assessing the Group’s
internal control system, formulating an impartial opinion on
the system, and reporting its findings to the Group Finance
Director, Group Managing Director and the Audit Committee
as well as following up on all reports to ensure that all issues
have been satisfactorily resolved. In addition, a regular
dialogue is maintained with the Group’s external auditors
so that both are aware of the significant factors which may
affect their respective scopes of work.
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Depending on the nature of business and risk exposure
of individual business units, the scope of the work
performed by the internal audit function includes financial
and operations review, recurring and surprise audits, fraud
investigation and productivity effectively reviews.

Reports from the external auditors on internal controls and
relevant financial reporting matters, if any, are presented to
the Group Finance Director and the relevant management
team. These reports are reviewed and the appropriate
actions taken.

Corporate Governance

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of
developing and maintaining sound and effective corporate
governance within the Group and is committed to ensuring
that the effective governance structure is put in place to
continuously review and improve the corporate governance
practices within the Group in light of evolving environment
and regulatory requirements.

Under the term of reference, the Audit Committee has been
delegated the corporate function of the Board to monitor,
procure and manage corporate governance compliance
within the Group. To assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling
its responsibilities, Company Secretary with representatives
from key departments of the Company are continuously
examine the corporate governance structure of the Group,
provide updates, identify emerging matters of compliance,
structure appropriate compliance mechanisms and monitor
compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the compliance status
and is satisfied that the Company has complied throughout
the year with all the code provisions of the CG Code
applicable during the year except for the deviation from
the Code Provision A.4.1 that is explained in the previous
relevant paragraph.
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Review of Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the Group’ internal control
system for the year ended 31 March, 2019 covering all
material financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions, and is satisfied that such
system are effective and adequate. In the view of the Board,
the system of internal control of the Group is sufficient to
safeguard the interest of the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH INVESTORS AND
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders of
the Company and investors. Therefore, the Board and the
Group’s senior Management maintain close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by
various channels including interviews and meetings. The
Group specially assigns Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain, Group
Finance Director, being the contact person of investor
relations to respond the requests of information and queries
from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the view of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meeting to communicate with the Board or
Management directly.
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SHAREHOLDER’S RIGHT

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
performance information of the Group to the shareholders
through publication of notices, announcements, circulars,
interim and annual reports. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices, financial reports to shareholders,
additional information are also available to the shareholders
on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meeting
of the Company, such as the annual general meeting and at
which the Chairman and Directors are available to answer
questions on the Group’s business. All shareholders have
statutory right to call for extraordinary general meeting and
put forward agenda items for consideration by shareholders
by sending to the Company Secretary at the registered
office a written request for such general meeting together
with the proposed agenda items. All substantial resolutions
at the general meeting are decided on a poll. The poll is
conducted by the Group’s Share Registrars and the results
of the poll are published on the websites at The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Group. Financial
and other information is made available on the Group’s
website, which is regularly updated.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERERS

In accordance with Appendix 27 — Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Main Board Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Oriental
Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”, “We”, and “Our”)
presents this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report for the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”).

REPORTING SCOPE

We are engaged in trading business of luxury watches.
This report presents our ESG policies, programmes and
performances in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China in
the Reporting Period.

OUR ESG GOVERNANCE

We believe a well-developed corporate governance structure
is the key to success of our ESG strategy. Therefore we
have established an ESG taskforce, which includes senior
management as well as department heads of different
functions while the Board of Directors has the overall
responsibility for the Group’s ESG reporting and strategy
in achieving green operations for sustainable development.
The key responsibilities of the ESG taskforce include the
following:

° Establishing long-term ESG goals and missions of the
Group;

e  Monitoring and managing ESG-related risks;

o Evaluating the effectiveness of the Group’s ESG
management systems; and

° Reporting the ESG objectives achieved to the Board on
a regular basis.

The ESG taskforce is authorised by the Board to carry out
its tasks including stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment. External professional advices could be sought
at the expense of the Group when the ESG risks are
assessed to be material.

We are committed to comply with the latest laws and
regulations as well as the industry standards in our ESG
practice. Our ESG initiatives are revised and communicated
timely with staff members in order to enhance the efficiency
of the ESG tasks.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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We review our risk management process on a regular
basis. Material risks will be assessed and discussed by the
abovementioned ESG taskforce and the Board. Internal
control measures will be designed and implemented
to mitigate the ESG risks. Please refer to the “RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL” section of the
Company’s “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT” for
details of the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We understand that stakeholders’ comments are crucial
to our decision-making process as well as our long-term
success in the future. Therefore we engage our stakeholders
by active communication and interaction. We have adopted
the following engagement methods for our stakeholders:

# Stakeholders

HE Pt ERERREF o FHESG/)
AR ERESSFERRTERRER ° WAL
EEREEA TR RWIT T EESG
[\ o L Be B TR Ko AR B PR ) S R8s B
B FR2EARAEEERRE JZIRA
BN ABPETE |66 -

M AHEE SR

LI - Mz EE 2 ERERMARK
ZRRIEFMERERERBEBIER -
it - FAPIFETE M S N B ) R GE A s 4R R

E2EHEE - RPEHRMAT M EEREE
SEJTE

Engagement Methods

Mz rEEE BT E
1 Suppliers and Business Partners o Meetings
g R R EBRBH =
° Daily email communication
HE#ma
o Regular evaluation
EBRET A
2 Customers e  Company website
=9 NGIE D
° Communication in retailing points
TEHR
e Customer service hotline
B AR 2 AR
° Enquiry emalil
B HEBH
3 Employees o Internal trainings
=] B
e  Staff notice and announcement
BI@ERRE
e  Annual performance appraisal
FRRETZ
o Internal meetings
PEb A
4 |Investors and Shareholders e  General meetings
REHENMKRR BRERE
° Annual and interim reports
FRENMPHRE
e  (Circulars and announcements
B RAE
e  Company website
NGIEERS
5 Government and Supervising Authorities e Email communications
T B B B A R BE A
° Meetings
S
= 3%
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMFME

For the identification and assessment of material ESG  A# 3| R EAESGHE - &ML
issues, we have conducted a materiality assessment with  ESGI#R&EIE3|HITEE MG - Kz E
regard to the ESG Reporting Guide. Our approach to the  EMFE A EIEUT ¢

materiality assessment includes the following:

Identification of ESG issues We held internal meetings with our internal business functions
HPIESG & and distributed questionnaires to external stakeholders to identify

potential ESG issues of the Group.
BPI AR E BB RITABEE - WM INEDF 48R E Ik 3
5 LBRIRNEEBEESGHA °

Assessment of the ESG issues We discussed, assessed and prioritised our ESG issues by
FFHESGEE considering the social, environmental and economic impact

toward the Group.
BMEZREHUAEE 24T  RIBREBERRN - AERELEER

ESG#&E&AE

Prioritisation of material ESG issues We concluded our material ESG issues to our management and
BEEEEKNESGHE the Board, and decided the ESG issues to be summarized and
presented in this ESG Report.
B ERESGHEEMAEEEREZGIEL - WRTEHNESGH
EHEENZ2 2 ESGHA °

After the materiality assessment had been performed during RFEEEELEEBRHNTEE MG
our stakeholder engagement, we identified the following % BPEENATREARERE AN
material ESG issues of the Company which are covered in A]EKESGHE -

this Report:

ESG aspects

as set out in
ESG Guide Material ESG issues for the Company
ESG 3|+
Fr& 2 ESGEE K ADRAIZEKRESGEE
A. Social, Employment B6 Product Responsibility | ¢ Product responsibility
and Labour EmEF EmAM
Practices e Data privacy
HE EEREIER BHILE
B5 Supply Chain e Supplier practices
Management R B Al
HERETE
B7 Anti-corruption e Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering
RE)T REFRBIEARE

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEXRITEBEERAQA
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ESG aspects

as set out in
ESG Guide Material ESG issues for the Company
ESGiE5|¥F
Fr& 2 ESGEH &g ADRAIZEKRESGEE
B1 Employment e Recruitment and promotion
e’ BERET
e Compensation
et
¢ Dismissal
e
e Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
TERE il RER
e Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits
and welfare
TERE - RAA R EMFBRET
B4 Labour Standards e Anti-child and anti-forced labour
BTEE PrIEET KB IERHIBT
B3 Development and e Training and development
Training Bk ER
#ERIE
B2 Health and Safety e Workplace health and safety
BEHZ T IESMiERERZ 2
B8 Community e Social responsibility
Investment HERME
B. Environment Al Emissions e Air emissions
BIR o3¢/ REBHM
e Greenhouse gases
RERE
e \Wastes
BEY)
A2 Use of Resources e Energy consumption
e Use of packaging materials
A BRME
A3 The Environment and | e  External lighting
Natural Resources PAMNE S
RERXAER e Renovation works
REIR
Annual Report 2019 ZE-NEFEER
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SOCIAL, EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Product Responsibility
Product responsibility

Being one of the largest watch retailers in Hong Kong, the
Company has joined the “Hong Kong Q-Mark Scheme”
of the Hong Kong Q-Mark Council to attest the quality of
its products and services. To achieve high product and
service quality, the Company only imports watches from
manufacturers who use environmentally friendly and safe
raw materials for production. This ensures the products we
sell to our customers are safe. Moreover, the Company uses
marketing materials provided by the suppliers to ensure
consistency between actual product specification and
information on the marketing materials. It guarantees the
compliance with the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong
Kong, Commercial Code in Macau and Advertisement Laws
in Mainland China.

The Company’s retail shops are all located at prime
locations to allow customers to enjoy convenient and
comfortable shopping experience. The Company has
established a specially designed VIP lounge at the flagship
stores to provide a private, nice and leisure environment
for customers to exchange professional knowledge and
insights of timepieces with our staff. Our professional sales
team are well-trained and strive to provide comprehensive
and knowledgeable advice accompanied with sincere and
premium after-sale services to each customer.

Customer feedback can be communicated through various
channels such as designated customer service hotline, email
address and social media platforms. Reports of enquiries
and complaints are recorded and reviewed regularly by
the management team for improvements on products and
services.

With our persistent sincerity and valuable relationship with
customers, the Company has been awarded the “Service
Industry Leader — Silver Award” by the Hong Kong Retalil
Management Association.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Data privacy

The Company respects the data privacy of our prestigious
customers, business partners and staff. It strives to protect
the privacy in the collection, processing and use of personal
data. The Company strictly follows the data protection
regulations in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.
Furthermore, the Company has deployed appropriate
technical measures in place, such as firewall and anti-virus
software, to protect personal data against unauthorised use
or access. The Company guarantees that the personal data
is securely kept and processed only for the purpose for
which it has been collected.

We devote our efforts in compliance with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Sale of Goods Ordinance,
Trade Description Ordinance, Supply of Services (Implied
Terms) Ordinance in Hong Kong, Commercial Code and
Personal Data Protection Act in Macau, and Product Quality
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
Advertisement Laws in Mainland China. During the Reporting
Period, we have not identified any material non-compliance
with the abovementioned laws and regulations.

Supply Chain Management
Supplier practices

Since its establishment in 1961, we have established and
maintained strong relationships with various well-known
luxury European watch brands. Many of these brands
are accredited for their supreme quality and excellent
craftsmanship. Furthermore, their products are required to
comply with high production standards and pass through
various testing procedures to ensure quality. Apart from
product quality, we also consider the reputation, as well as
the environmental and social performances of the watch
manufacturers before establishing business relationship with
them.
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Anti-corruption
Anti-corruption and anti-money laundering

We believe that honesty, integrity and fairness are of vital
importance to its business operations. The Company
has incorporated a strict code of conduct in its staff
manual for all employees to specify that solicitation and
acceptance of advantages are prohibited and breaches of
the code of conduct would result in disciplinary actions.
Regular declaration of interest is compulsory for certain
staff depending on grades and positions. Reminders are
sent to employees regularly, and our business partners,
suppliers and contractors are also informed of our policy
on declaration of interests. Employees have been given
induction briefing organised by the Company or seminars
on anti-corruption regularly organised by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. The Company
also maintains a set of whistleblowing procedures and
periodically reviews the effectiveness of its internal control
systems.

We adhere to the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to the bribery, corruption and money laundering,
for example, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance in Hong Kong, Prevention and Suppression of
Bribery in the Private Sector in Macau, and Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC, Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery and Criminal Law of the PRC in
Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
laws and regulations.

Employment
Considering human resources as the most important asset
of the Company, the Company has established employment

policies and guidelines based on the local employment laws
in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Recruitment and promotion

The Company hires and promotes staff who share and
support the Company’s missions, values and work ethics.
The Company treasures those who demonstrate diligence,
initiative, responsibility and integrity. Hiring and promotion
are based on performance and merit.

Compensation

The Company takes reference from local industrial average
to determine staff remuneration and other fringe benefits.
Experience and qualifications of staff are also taken into
account. Key performance indices, depending on staff
position, have been adopted to measure staff performance
in determining staff salary packages.

Dismissal

Dismissal is considered for underperformance, misconduct
and/or fraud. All dismissal cases will be carried out in
accordance with the Employment Laws in Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China.

Equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination

The Company is an equal opportunity employer. The
Company emphasises human capital diversity, and is
against any kind of discrimination. The Company ensures
equal opportunity in all of its human resources processes,
regardless of gender, pregnancy, marital status, disability,
family status, and race of the staff.

Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and
welfare

Working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare are determined based on local industrial averages.
Experience, qualifications and seniority of staff are taken into
account as well.
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We have put great emphasis to the compliance with the
labor-related laws and regulations such as the Employment
Ordinance and Minimum Wage Ordinance in Hong Kong,
Labour Relations Law, and Framework Law on Employment
Policy and Worker’s Rights in Macau as well as Labour
Law of the PRC and Labour Contract Law of the PRC in
Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
employment laws and regulations.

Labour Standards
Anti-child and anti-forced labour

All of the Company’s offices and retail stores strictly comply
with the local law’s requirements, with no tolerance on child
and forced labour. During our hiring process, we check and
verify the personal data of the potential candidates in order
to prevent from hiring child or forced labour.

We have noted the requirements about child or forced
labour in the local laws and regulations of our operating
locations. Therefore we strictly adhere to these laws and
regulations such as Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong,
Labour Relations Law in Macau and Labour Law of the PRC
in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
employment laws and regulations.

Development and Training
Training and development

The Company considers human resources are crucial to
the success of its business. Therefore, the Company has
developed a comprehensive training programmes consisting
of product knowledge, service and selling skills, complaints
handling techniques and managerial competences. These
training courses are provided for different levels of staff
based on their job responsibilities.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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The Company also offers induction training courses for
communicating corporate values, service standards and
code of conduct to new joiners. In addition, leadership
programmes organised by external professional institutions
have been provided to management personnel so as to
equip them with proper professional management skills.
Furthermore, the Company has engaged external service
providers to perform independent evaluation on the
performance of frontline staff. It helps identify potential
improvement areas to enhance customer service skills of the
staff.

Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe, healthy,
pleasant and efficient work environment for its staff. In
order to ensure the work environment is healthy and safe,
various administrative measures such as workplace safety
posters, training courses and practical guidelines have been
implemented to communicate such a concept to all staff in
its extensive retail network. Regardless of seriousness and
locations, all cases of injury are required to be reported to
the head office for further assessment under the internal
policies and procedures so as to ensure proper handling of
the cases and execution of preventive measures.

As a responsible employer, all staff are entitled to the
Company’s medical insurance as well as other competitive
fringe benefits to enable them to have easier access
to preventative and emergency health care and afford
treatment.

We realise the laws and regulations about workplace health
and safety have been tightened and more aware by the
local authorities. We have spent efforts in compliance with
the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance in Hong Kong, safety laws in
Macau (i.e. Section 2/83/M), and Work Safety Law of the
PRC in Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, we
have not identified any material non-compliance with the
aforesaid workplace health and safety-related laws and
regulations.
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Community Investment
Social responsibility

The Company demonstrates its care for society by giving
back to the community. We are committed to enhancing the
community’s well-being and social services. The Company
as a whole, as well as individual senior management
personnel have been actively donating to various charitable
organisations. On the one hand, it provides funding to
support charity activities. On the other hand, it motivates
the staff to join the charity activities, thereby magnifying the
effect.

Run for Heart - “World Heart Day 2019”

Oriental Watch sponsored and sent our staff to participate
in the Run for Heart — “World Heart Day 2019” organized by
Hong Kong College of Cardiology, to promote the cardiac
health parent and child running activity to the public. The
Company expects to encourage people to do more exercise
through supporting this activity, in order to promote the
importance of cardiac health.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

The Company exerts its best efforts in protecting the
environment from its business activities and workplace. The
Company is committed to promoting the green concept
by introducing environmentally friendly business practices
and educating its employees to raise their awareness on
environmental protection.

Multiple measures have been adopted to reduce energy
and other resource use, minimise waste, increase recycling
and promote environmentally friendly practices in its supply
chain and retail network operations.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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During our daily operations, we are subject to the Product
Eco-responsibility Ordinance and Motor Vehicle Idling
(Fixed Penalty) Ordinance in Hong Kong, environmental
laws in Macau (i.e. Section 2/91/M), and Law of the PRC
on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise and Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
in Mainland China. We strictly adhere to all applicable
environmental laws and regulations and we have not
identified any material non-compliance with the aforesaid
laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

Air emissions

We maintain vehicles for our executives and customers, as
well as for delivery purpose. Such vehicles are the major
source of our air emissions. During the Reporting Period,
our air emissions details were as follows:

HEEE® BRMEXBBELRRREMR
il K /R B 5| B 2= 8 (TE B 0 3O &) - R
FIIR 5L (BNEE 2/91/MIE) ~ Bl APER 78
FEIR I RIEHIRIER TSR ERERF
BIRRALIR o« KRBT —YIEARE
EREEER  MEAMR RN H R BEE
PR AR BIRERERBR

A

BPBITHRABREPREREEMNER
@ HETESREHNZIEIERA - 2
BN BAIZREHEFBOT

2019 2018’

—EB-NF —E-NF

Source of emission® Unit Amount Amount
BEBUR By 28 28
Nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) RELP(TNOx]) tonnes i 0.16242 N/A 7~ B
Sulphur oxides (“SOx”) may([sox]) tonnes I 0.00058 N/A 138 A
Particular matter (“PM”) FFRF([PM]) tonnes I 0.01482 N/A 73 B

We are aware of the use of air emissions generated from
our use of vehicles so that we have established internal
procedures to reduce the negative impact and ensure the
compliance with the Air Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong
Kong and Environmental Protection Law of the PRC. For
example, we monitored the vehicle conditions on a regular
basis and arranged the vehicles for annual test by the local
authority.

The system for collection of vehicle data was established in the
Reporting Period and the data in 2018 was not available.

The calculation of air emissions was based on the “Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Greenhouse gases

Since the Company’s major business is luxury watches
retailing in different geographical areas of the Greater
China region, the Company has no production activities or
facilities. Therefore, there were no direct air emission and
sewage discharge to the environment during the Reporting
Period. Our major air emission included indirect greenhouse
gas emissions arising from paper usage, use of vehicles
and electricity consumption of offices and retail stores. The
details of the indirect greenhouse gas emission (“C0O2¢e”)
were as follows:

HRARBZEBXB RN ATEBE T
FIMBEVENREREERTE  Hih - &
NENNEAERE RN L RER
HIA I & B R MIRB B MR So57K » £
EREHNEBEAR ERAERBAE
LEEEREEL CHBEAERBYMN -
A EREIR([CO2e ) FHEANT :

2019 2018
ZB-hE —T-N\F
Intensity Intensity
(Per square (Per square
foot of foot of
operating operating
Source of emission® Unit Quantity locations) Quantity locations)
BE RE
(B¥AR (B ¥R
BE U By = 3:08 ) BE LHEMB)
Retailing activities TEEH Ton CO,e 1,975.03 0.034 1,102.83 0.021
8 COe

Compared to 2018, the increase in CO2e was attributed
to the frequent use of vehicles in Hong Kong and Mainland
China regions, as well as the higher consumption of
electricity of the retail stores in Mainland China region.

The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions was based on the
“Greenhouse Gas Protocol” published by World Resources Institute
and World Business Council on Sustainable Development, “Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, “Guidelines to Account for and Report on
Greenhouse Gas Emission and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong” by Hong Kong
Environmental Protection Department and Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department, “CLP Sustainability Report 2018” by CLP
Holdings Limited, “HK Electric Sustainability Report 2018” by
Hongkong Electric Company Limited, “CEM Sustainability Report
2017” by Companhia de Electricidade de Macau, “[FE 32 @@ &b %
BEREHMUZE R AR REERE(F17)” published by the National
Development and Reform Commission of the PRC, and “2017 &
FBEE H R BRI E AR ELEYENEF " published by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

HERZZE—/\F  CO2eiEMBELENE
BMPEAEEAEFERTELTER
wiETEEREERS °

¢ OREREFRENE DA RE R Kt
RUKEERBEREEEAMZIIEERBETE
g BEBARZMERIRAMZRFEER
BMIERERIES ] BEREREZBLBET
BREAMZIEBREY(HE  EERAHLA
B)ERERBH R IERB WREMBEES! ]
HEENARARZIPEEE 2018 AHEER
WE] BRERAERDAZERE2018F A #
BRERRE] BMENRNDERABTZNEFE
NAFHEERBE2017] - PHEBERBERMNE
ZEGAMzEERBERCEREREBIN
RE RN ERRGUT) I R BARRE
AMie 2 [2017 SFERPEIE B o B GR  E AR
BERETF ]

RAXRTEBEBRQF



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BB - HERERRE

We are cautious about the environment and the carbon
footprints in our operations. We have put into practice
certain environmentally friendly initiatives in reducing
the greenhouse gas emission. Please refer to A2 Use of
Resources for details.

Wastes

Owing to the Company’s retail business nature, no
hazardous waste was produced during the Reporting
Period. For non-hazardous wastes, the major type was the
paper used for administrative work and the details of non-
hazardous wastes created were as follows:

BPHEEZRBELMEEIRFER -
MEERE TREBRBEION B EREH
e FHBEE2EA2EREA -

BERY

ERARATEXEHUE - RERHAR
VTEELRZEEY REZERYM
5 XEBRMRITRIEMMBAR - M
EEBEERY 2 FHBTOT

2019 2018
—E-AF .t
Intensity Intensity
(Per square (Per square
foot of foot of
operating operating
Type Unit locations) Quantity locations)
BrE BE
(BFAR (BF¥AR
LEid] By I 2E EEME)
Non-hazardous waste EZEEEZEY) Ton
07 2417 0.0004 29.61 0.0006

Compared to 2018, the non-hazardous waste reduced and
it was mainly attributed to a lower usage of paper and our
effective paper recycling initiatives.

To reduce office waste paper, the Company has been
creating a paperless working environment through increasing
the use of internet system gradually. On one hand, it
reduces environmental damage; on the other hand, it fits
commercial goals, as this saves office space used for storing
hardcopies and facilitates efficient information sharing via
office network. Furthermore, double-sided printing and
copying has become compulsory in the Company except
for special circumstances with approval obtained. Only used
paper can be used as draft paper by staff. Collection boxes
have been put in place to collect single-side used paper for
reuse and other scrap paper for recycling. These can help
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reduce paper consumption and save costs substantially. To
monitor the paper usage efficiency, consumption records of
paper and printing have been regularly collected, assessed
and monitored.

Use of Resources

Owing to the nature of our retail business, our operations
do not involve significant water consumption and no issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose was noted during
the Reporting Period. Electricity and packaging bags are the
major resources we use in our luxury watch retail business.

Energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, the types and amount of
energy consumed were as follows:

Energy Type® Unit Amount
BERER B
Electricity ES) kWh

T B/ 2,780,631
Diesel B Liter AT+ 14,148
Petrol i Liter A F+ 23,682

During the Reporting Period, we have established a system
for collection of electricity data in China regions, while in
2018, only data for Hong Kong and Macau regions was
collected. Therefore, the significant increase in electricity
consumption in the Reporting Period was due to the
inclusion of data of the China regions.

The system for collection of vehicle data was established in the
Reporting Period and the data in 2018 was not available.

The above electricity consumption included only the offices and the
retail stores in Hong Kong and Macau of which the Company directly
managed and paid for the electricity consumption.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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To minimise energy consumption in its retail stores and
offices, the Company advocates the efficient use of energy
by adopting green technologies and close monitoring
on operations. As a retailer of luxury watches, the most
significant use of energy has arisen from the electricity
consumption in retail stores for air conditioning and lighting.
The Company monitors technology advancements in
lighting systems and upgrades the systems accordingly so
as to increase overall operating efficiency. For instance,
the Company has replaced many of the traditional light
bulbs with LED ones, which are more energy efficient. In
addition, the Company measures and records the energy
consumption on an on-going basis to analyse its energy
consumption efficiency.

Use of packaging materials
We consumed packaging bags and materials in our

business. During the Reporting Period, the packaging
materials consumed were as follows:

Unit

Packaging materials BEME
During the Reporting Period, we have established a more
comprehensive data collection system for our packaging
materials. In addition to the record of normal packaging
materials presented in 2018, we have consolidated our
consumption of all other kinds of shopping bags including
recycled shopping bags. Therefore, compared to 2018, the
significant increase in consumption of packaging materials
was due to an improved data collection system.

All of the packaging bags distributed to customers are made
of Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”) accredited paper
which are more environmentally friendly. Furthermore, the
packaging bags are designed to fit the product size in order
to avoid excessive packaging. Packaging bags will only be
distributed upon customers’ request.
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The Environment and Natural Resources

As most of our retail stores are located at central business
areas, the Company endeavours to minimise its impacts
on the environment by identifying, assessing and managing
environmental impacts resulting from its various operational
activities regularly. For any significant impacts identified,
the Company will immediately formulate and execute
the corresponding mitigation measures and monitor its
effectiveness continuously to ensure the impacts have been
resolved.

External lighting

As a luxury watch retailer, the Company uses standout
advertising signs to attract customers, which may create
certain level of light. In view of that, the Company has
signed up to the “Charter on External Lighting” launched
by the Environment Bureau of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administration Region such that all advertising
signs of the retails stores will be switched off between
11p.m. and 7a.m. on the following day.

Renovation works

Renovation works are carried out regularly to ensure our
retail shops offer pleasant environment to customers and to
increase our bargaining power when negotiating rental terms
with landlords. As such, noise and dust will be resulted
from the renovation works and affect the neighbourhood.
Although all renovation works are outsourced to third party
contractors which the Company has no direct control, we
require our contractors to execute all possible measures in
mitigating the negative impacts on the neighbourhood, for
example, requiring renovation works to be carried out during
non-peak hours and installing barriers to prevent dust and
noise from spreading out.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company as
well as engaged in watch trading. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 71 to 72.

An interim dividend of 2.8 Hong Kong cents per share and
a special dividend of 8.7 Hong Kong cents per share was
declared and paid to the shareholders during the year.
A final dividend of 8.0 Hong Kong cents per share and a
special dividend of 13.5 Hong Kong cents per share being
proposed by the directors are subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$122,183,000, dividend reserve of HK$122,627,000 and
retained profits of HK$34,627,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@) to do so would render the Company unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately HK$26.4
million on the purchase of property, plant and equipment.
Details of these and other movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu (Chairman)
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum

Independent non-executive directors:

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson
Dr. Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr. Choi Man Chau, Michael

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws, Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley, Mr. Lam Hing Lun,
Alain and Mr. Choi Kwok Yum retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company and the senior management of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of

this report, the other director of subsidiary of the Company
was Madam Cheong, Wai Lin.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

EXHACERSERRKR

<

BRIEBEBE 5 RABKRA(FEHFRAER
Bl ) E321GHERE 2 S MATREEE -
RZZE—NF=ZA=1+—"H8 ARQRIZE
ERARRB RN RABBRND TS 2
W IREBELEMARESETELRRIW
ZEFABENE AR REBBEZSA
ERAR([BRAT]) 2T -

Number of shares held
FrsRGHE
Percentage of
Total  issued share
Personal Family Corporate number  capital of the
interest interest interest of shares Company
BARREER
Name of director Espg BARE FikER AR RiEH REBAL
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu BREELT 19,669,583 7920000 128,164,561 155,754,144 27.31%
(note (a))
(Wit ()
Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis BiThREE 5,524,000 - (note (b)) 5,524,000 0.97%
(Wit
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley LG G 2,640,000 221,161 (note (c)) 2,861,161 0.50%
(Wit ()
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain MEBRLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.63%
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum BERLE 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 0.63%
Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson FEEEL - - 3,200,000 3,200,000 0.56%
(note (d))
(W)
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Notes:

(a)

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu and his wife, Madam Au Po Kee, are the
beneficial owners of 45% and 22.5% respectively of the issued share
capital of Realtower Holdings Limited. Realtower Holdings Limited
and Dr. Yeung Ming Biu are the respective beneficial owners of 55%
and 10% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 80% of the issued share capital of
Datsun Holdings Limited. Datsun Holdings Limited is the beneficial
owner of 127,776,000 shares in the Company.

Dr. Yeung Ming Biu is the beneficial owner of 47.5% of the issued
share capital of Y.H. Chan Limited, which is the beneficial owner of
25% of the issued share capital of Furama Investments Limited. Y.H.
Chan Limited also directly holds 388,561 shares in the Company.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is the beneficial owner of 10% and 7%
of the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited and Real
Champ Limited respectively. Real Champ Limited is the beneficial
owner of 20% of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.

Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley is the beneficial owner of 7.5% of
the issued share capital of Realtower Holdings Limited.

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu, Samson and his family members are the beneficial
owners of the entire issued share capital of Sun International Limited,
which is the beneficial owner of 3,200,000 shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held by a director in trust for the
Company, none of the directors of the Company had any
interest or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3
November 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a period
of ten years commencing on the adoption date on 3
November 2003.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to any director, employee, consultant,
customer, supplier or advisor of the Group or a
company in which the Company holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company, the trustee of the eligible
persons or a company beneficially owned by the
eligible persons. The purpose of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
No eligible persons shall be granted an option in any
12-month period for such number of shares (issued
and to be issued) which in aggregate would exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last day of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant, and may include a minimum
period for which the options must be held before it can
be exercised. The exercise price per share payable on
the exercise of an option equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.
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The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2
November 2013. The options could be exercised by the
participants at any time during the option period and
notwithstanding that the 2003 Share Option Scheme

had expired.

The following table discloses movements of the options
granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme to
directors, certain employees and consultants during the

year:
Original
Name of category of Date of grant exercise price
participant of options ~per share
BRE  FESR
SREFNER RiAH ik
HKS
AT
(note &)
(//Wi?ﬁ/]
Directors E%
Dr. Yeung Ming Biu 06.04.2011 413
FRERL
Wr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis 06.04.2011 413
BiRRE
Madam Yeung Man Yee, Shirley ~ 06.04.2011 413
PEL e
Mr. Lam Hing Lun, Alain 06.04.2011 413
HERRE
Mr. Choi Kwok Yum 06.04.2011 413
EEftE
Other employees
Type A (note b) 06.04.2011 413
AB(Hib)
Type B (note ¢) 29.08.2011 480
BE e/
Consultants
Type A (note b) 06.04.2011 413
AR
Type B (note ¢) 29.08.2011 480
BE e/
Total
i

Adjusted
exercise price
per share

gL
SRORE
HKS
AT
(note &)
\‘%]LE ﬁ/)

344
344
344
3.44

3.44

344

NIA
TEH

344

NIA
TEH
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Exercisable period

06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021
06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021

06.04.2011 — 05.04.2021

06.04.2011 - 06.04.2021

29.08.2011 - 28.08.2021

06.04.2011 ~ 06.04.2021

29082011 - 28.08.2021

TR _FBEREFEIN T =F
T—A—BEm - BREATH2EE
1A AU HR ) (E () By ) 7 AT > 1
Pim —ET=_FBEEEASIERERD °

TEREES  ETEENMERNSE
NI — T =FBERE I ERE
Ptz 5

Number of shares
under options  Forfeited during ~ Number of shares
at14.2017and  the yearended  under options at
31.3.2018 31.3.2019 31.3.2019

RZZ-1f

BA-AZ
-\ RMEECR-AE RZZ-1%
ZR=t-8 ZR=t-R ZRzt-R
BRESRZROEE LEERY BREFRRANUR
1,440,000 - 1,440,000
1,440,000 - 1,440,000
1,440,000 - 1,440,000
3,600,000 - 3,600,000
3,600,000 - 3,600,000
11,520,000 - 11,520,000
14,400,000 - 14,400,000
18,000,000 - 18,000,000
5,640,000 (3,000,000) 2,640,000
5,000,000 - 5,000,000
54,660,000 (3,000,000) 51,560,000
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(b)

Notes:

(a) An ordinary resolution was passed by the shareholders at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 28 July
2011 approving a bonus issue of shares to shareholders of
the Company on the basis of one new ordinary share for every
five ordinary shares held. The number of shares under the
outstanding options and the exercise price per share of the
outstanding options were adjusted accordingly pursuant to the
terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

(b)  Type A represented share options were granted on 6 April
2011.

(c) Type B represented share options were granted on 29 August
2011.

2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 13 August
2013, a new share option scheme was adopted with
effect on 3 November 2013 (the “2013 Share Option
Scheme”) after the expiry of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options may
be granted to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust
whose discretionary objects include any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service to
the Group or business with the Group contributes or
is expected to contribute to the business or operation
of the Group. The purpose of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme is to attract and retain quality personnel
and other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
The total number of shares available for issue under
the 2013 Share Option Scheme as at the date of this
report is 57,061,022 shares. No eligible persons shall
be granted an option in any 12-month period for such
number of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital of the
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Company in issue on the last day of such 12-month
period unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. The exercisable period is determined by
the directors of the Company, which shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be held
before it can be exercised. The exercise price per
share payable on the exercise of an option equals to
the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;

(b) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; and

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in force
until 2 November 2023.

No option was granted, exercised or lapsed under the
2013 Share Option Scheme during the year since its
effective date on 3 November 2013 and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2019.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019, according to the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the
following persons (not being a director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests in the share capital of the
Company.

Name of shareholder

BREREHE

Datsun Holdings Limited
Furama Investments Limited
Realtower Holdings Limited

Realtower Holdings Limited holds 55% of the issued share
capital of Furama Investments Limited which holds 80%
of the issued share capital of Datsun Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, both Realtower Holdings Limited and Furama
Investments Limited are deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the 127,776,000 shares in the Company held
by Datsun Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 March 2019, there was
no person who had any interests or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company according to
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.
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INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There were no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director or a connected entity of
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

There is no contract of significance between the Group and
a controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any of its subsidiaries, including for the
provision of services to the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers were less than 30% of the
Group’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers comprised approximately
93% of the Group’s total purchases while the purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 80% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder,
which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company
had purchased a total of 252,000 shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at the price range of
HK$1.78 to HK$1.80 per share, totalling HK$452,560. Save
as aforesaid, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during such year.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations totalling
HK$85,000.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 13 to 35.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a total of about 600
employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to directors and employees of the Group, details
of the schemes are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
option schemes and directors’ rights to acquire shares
or debentures” above and in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Details of the Group’s Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 23 to 27.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital

of the Company are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the percentage of the Company’s shares in the
hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting
of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Ming Biu
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 19 June 2019

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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Deloitte

To the Shareholders of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 71 to 203, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

ERETEE
FARETFRERBERMANFERHE - &7
RUARPEEVBERRNVBARAEEN

£ GREEHEAERMENFERESH
a‘&#&%&ﬁﬁfﬁﬂjL TERIEMH M
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in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRETSE

Valuation of watches

FixlaE

We identified valuation of watches as a key audit
matter due to the significance of amount of
watches to the consolidated statement of financial
position as at the end of the reporting period,
and significant judgements by management in
determining the net realisable value for watches.
EEJ‘EAif%EA:'i&ﬁﬁﬂimﬁﬁ/—\ﬂﬂ‘%%ﬁﬁ%%{%ﬁﬁék - B
ERERNEEFRAISEFERELDEANALE - &
ik %Fﬁ?fﬁ%ﬁ%fﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%lﬁo

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group
identifies slow-moving watches with reference to
ageing analysis and determines the net realisable
value for watches by considering the saleability of
watches based on current market conditions, future
sales plan and latest available sales information
of similar watches. As at 31 March 2019, the
carrying amount of watches (net of allowance)
is HK$803,095,000. Details of the allowance for
slow-moving watches credited during the year and
the carrying amount of watches (net of allowance)
at 31 March 2019 are set out in notes 8 and 19 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMHETNERARETSRETER

Qur procedures in relation to the valuation of
watches included:

KPBRRETFREENRT R

e  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
allowance policy on watches and evaluating
management’s process in identifying slow-
moving watches and determining the
allowance for watches;

T BEEENFREEDRE  FEE
R SH T 8k N ETE FERBEENET
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e  \Verifying the accuracy of ageing analysis of
watches, on a sample basis, to the purchase
invoices and goods receipt notes;
UHEFALHBERZRNERE REF
SRAR IS 0 AT HY R

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the
allowance for watches on slow-moving
watches determined with reference to the net
realisable value for such watches by verifying,
on a sample basis, to latest available sales
information of similar watches taking into
account of the current market conditions and
future sales plan; and
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e Testing the subsequent sales of inventories,
on a sample basis, to the sales invoices.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lo Kin Cheong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

19 June 2019

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

relEakHM2E KSR
For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

Revenue Wz

Cost of goods sold HEMK A

Gross profit EF

Other income, gains and losses  H AU A - Wz MEE
Distribution and selling expenses 7§85 & 55 /X
Administrative expenses 1T 2

Finance costs A& KA

Share of results of associates JEIGEE & DR 2 ¥ &
Share of result of a joint venture ER—FEIAENAIZEE

Profit before taxation BR3¢ A A
Income tax expense FTiSH R
Profit for the year F R
Other comprehensive (expense) Hih 2 (%) Wzs
income
Item that will not be BT EBEF D EE B
reclassified to profit or loss: ZIHEE -

Change in fair value of BATEFAREME
equity instruments at EWm 2 RATE
fair value through other ZRAFEE
comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified ~— HE{ZR[EEEZH B E1E
subsequently to profit or mZHE -

loss:

Exchange difference arising BREBINEBRES
on translation of foreign ZIEHERR
operations

Reclassification adjustments —IBBINER IR G
for the cumulative & REtiE X =58
exchange differences upon ZEHOBERE
deregistration of a foreign
operation

Change in fair value of BAFEAHEME
debt instruments at B EBBTIA
fair value through other ZATHEES
comprehensive income

Change in fair value of AL ESREEL
available-for-sale financial NSRIEE
assets

FAEMEE (RS ) Wt

Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

FREHBSERE

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Annual Report 2019

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

Notes HK$°000 HK$000
Wit FAET FAET
5 2,437,184 2,891,692
(1,834,224) (2,284,817)

602,960 606,875

6 31,056 38,870
(197,943) (206,424)
(277,575) (275,423)
7 (1,959) (1,843)
3,244 2,586

192 50

8 159,975 164,691
10 (21,936) (26,008)
138,039 138,685

(468) —

(42,146) 61,587

2,256 —

60 =

— 478

(40,298) 62,065

97,741 200,750

—E-NEFR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEEkEMSEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

72

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hat FET FET
Profit (loss) for the year AT AT FERRF
attributable to: (BE)
Owners of the Company RAREER A 138,099 138,763
Non-controlling interests FEIERR M2 (60) (78)
138,039 138,685
Total comprehensive income UTATEGZEKE
(expense) attributable to: (FAX) B8
Owners of the Company ZN/NETEZ 2N 97,848 200,783
Non-controlling interests FEIT PR B (107) (33)
97,741 200,750
Earnings per share BRAEF
Basic A 24.21 24.32
12 HK cents &l HK cents 71l
Diluted BE 24.21 24.32
12 HK cents &l HK cents 11l

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e B RE

At 31 March 2019
R-FE—AFE=FA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z—N\E
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
e FET FET
Non-current assets EMENEE
Property, plant and Y% - R LA
equipment 13 215,444 210,816
Deposits for acquisition W - R Kk
of property, plant and B &
equipment 10,636 3,000
Interests in associates ey /NC o £ 14 37,337 37,779
Interest in a joint venture H—HEeEAFZ
Em 15 26,005 27,413
Equity instruments at fair BAFEAEM
value through other FEHWBSZBRATA
comprehensive income 16 3,907 —
Debt instruments at fair BT EFAEAM
value through other FHRECEBITA
comprehensive income 17 5,008 —
Available-for-sale financial At ESREE
assets 16 - 12,344
Deferred tax assets EEFRIAEE 24 24 56
Property rental deposits MERSES 31,463 30,817
329,824 322,225
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 19 823,654 1,001,069
Trade and other receivables B 5 I HAth e AR 3K 20 148,576 134,704
Financial assets at fair value BERFEFABRZ
through profit or loss TR E 18 14,982 —
Debt instruments at fair B EFTAEAM
value through other FHRECEBTE
comprehensive income 17 1,812 —
Taxation recoverable AR B 718 4,470 48
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 21 1,084,911 1,081,891
2,078,405 2,217,712
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables B 5 N A b FE T BR 3K 22 119,026 126,076
Contract liabilities AHEE 22 7,476 —
Taxation payable FES 718 2,758 19,925
Bank loans RITEK 23 63,367 62,820
192,627 208,821
Annual Report 2019 —E-NFER



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BB R R
At 31 March 2019
R-FE-NE=F=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE == N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat FET FET
Net current assets mENEEFE 1,885,778 2,008,891
Total assets less current BERBERRBEE
liabilities 2,215,602 2,331,116
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Bank loans IRITER 23 - 12,500
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEAE 24 2,001 1,664
2,001 14,164
Net assets BEFE 2,213,601 2,316,952
Capital and reserves BEAR R F#E
Share capital f& AR 25 57,036 57,061
Reserves ] 2,155,697 2,258,916
Equity attributable to owners AR GIHEA AEIEHEZS
of the Company 2,212,733 2,315,977
Non-controlling interests AR A 2 868 975
Total equity R BEE 2,213,601 2,316,952

HNRFE7T1EEZF 203 B2 FAPBRERL
BEeRN T NAFENATABHERR
BEHZE IYHTNEERAERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 203
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 19 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yeung Ming Biu Yeung Him Kit, Dennis

AR BOTER
CHAIRMAN DEPUTY CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
e HIE BARE FRATIE

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEAXTEBERRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

meER

BE) R

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE—F

At Aprl 2017

Profit (loss) for the year

Exchange difference arising on
translation of foreign operations

Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale
financial assets

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year
2017 final dlvidend paid
2017 special dividend paid
2018 interim dividend paid
2018 final dlvidend proposed
2018 special dividend proposed

At 31 March 2018
Adjustments (see note 2)

At 1 April 2018 (restated)

Profit (loss) for the year

Change in fair value of equity
instruments at fair value through
ofher compreensive income

Exchange difference arising on
{ranslation of foreign operations

Reclassffication adjustments for the
cumulative exchange differences
upon deregistration of a foreign
operation

Change in fair value of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

2018 final dividend paid

2018 special dividend paid

2019 interim dividend paid

2019 interim speclal dividend paid

2019 inal divicend proposed

2019 special dividend proposed

Shares repurchased and cancelled
(note 29)

Forfeiture of share options

Disposal of equity instruments at fair
valug through other comprehensive

income

At 31 March 2019

—NEFE=ZA=1F—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KOAREARE
Share  Capital Asset Non-
Share  Share  option redemption  Capital revaluation  Special Translation ~Retained Dividend controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  resevve  profits  reserve Sub-total interests Total
R REEE BREGE S4REEE G4RE GEEGEE GORE REBE REEA RERE M FERRE &
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
AT TAr  fEr TEr  TEr fEr TAr TEr fEr TRt TEn fEr TEn
(note b) (note a)
(Witb) (Wia)
S 2 oy 57,061 549306 83,504 425 80 6454 5180 17463 1406233 19400 2,146,006 1,008 2,147,014
Emgil(§8) = = = = = = - - 138763 - 138763 (78) 138,685
BERNERAEL Y EE
- - - - - - - 61542 - - 6150 4 61587
THHECHER ATRED
- - - - - 418 - - - - 478 - 478
ERaEhE 0
- - - - - 478 - b5 138763 - 20,788 (33) 200,750
BREZZ-tERARE = = = = = = - - -8 22 - 28
BRE-Z-tERIRE T 111 BN (A1 I (1A
BRECR-N\ERERE - - - - - - - - (11419 - (11412 - (149
HiE -5 \ERERE - - - - - - - - (5519 4559 - - -
REE-Z-NERARS = = = = = = = - (5592 8559 - - -
RE-\E=A=1-R 57,061 549306 83554 42 80 6982 5180 79006 1402343 181241 2315977 975 2,316,952
EL ) = = = = - - - - (3808 - (3808 - (3808
=5 )\EmA-A(EES) 57,061 549306 83,554 425 840 6932 5180 79,005 1298535 131,241 2,312,169 975 2,313,144
EREf(ER) - - - - - - - - 138,09 - 138,009 (60) 138,039
RATE MHME%ZM
TEZATERY
- - - - - (468) - - - - (468) - (468)
BERISRAE 2B
- - - - - - - (42,099) - - (42,009 (A7) (42,146)
“BENERR LT ER
AR EN R
- - - - - - - 2,256 - - 2,056 - 2,056
BATETALH2 ARG FH
THIATERD
- - - - - 60 - - - - 60 - 60
EREMRENE(RR)
- - - - - (408) - (39,643 138,009 - 048 (107) 97,741
BRE-E-N\ERERE = - - - - - - - - (45649)  (45,649) - (45,649
BREZZ-)\ERFIRE - - - = = = = = - (85592  (85,59) - (6559)
BREZT-NEhERE = = = - - - - - (15970) - (15070 - (15970)
BREZZ-NERERIRE = - - - - - - - [49621) - (49621) - (49621
REE-Z-NERHRE = = = = = - - - (45629) 450629 - - -
REET-nERIRE - - - - - - - - (1699 7699 - - -
RABE R
(Wit2s) (25 {2 - - - - - - - - (45) - (452)
BlERR - - (4166) - - - - - 4166 - - - -
HERATETALMAENE,
RAIE
- - - - - [4579) - - 4575 - - - -
RF-NE=A=1-H 57,006 548,969 79,368 425 840 1949 5180 39,162 12367,187 122,627 2,212,733 868 2,213,601
Annual Report 2019 —E-NFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

Notes:

(a)

The special reserve of the Group comprises the difference between
the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the issued share capital and special reserves
of those companies which were acquired by the Company pursuant
to a group reorganisation in 1993. The special reserves of these
acquired subsidiaries represent the credit arising on reduction of their
paid up share capital under the group reorganisation.

Subsequent to NEBIRE ZRKRHER AR (‘Li Loong”) becoming
a subsidiary of the Company in May 2013, the Group further
subscribed 6,000,000 shares of Li Loong in September 2013, for
a cash consideration of New Taiwan Dollar (“NT$”) 60,000,000
(equivalent to HK$15,698,000). The Group’s equity interest in Li
Loong increased from 90% to 96%. This is accounted for as a
deemed acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary and has
been recognised as capital reserve.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

HaE -

AEEZFHFEEFBEARRAMETRAEE
EASERBE-NAN=FETEEEEMKE
ZRABEBETRAREZZRMAKREARZ
R Bl o 2P IREB TR R B 2 Rl i e
RIFEEEHERZEF QR B GRIRAMESE
ZHERR -

ROEBBRESROHABRABAEDE=
T—=FERAREBRATZHBARE B
T—=FNA ' NEE#E— R 6,000,000
BAOERD  BeRERFAK(IHAK])
60,000,000 7t (#8 % 7 15,698,000 7T ) ° 7
EBR N8 2R H 0% I ZE 6% ° It I
BEABRYIER B R — MK B AR 25 INE
o WEHERBEARE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FEr
Operating activities REET
Profit before taxation 4 5 Al A 159,975 164,691
Adjustments for: MUATIEEELAR :
Depreciation of property, M WS REREC
plant and equipment e 21,618 21,389
Impairment loss recognised HE - WERZE
in respect of property, R BEEE
plant and equipment 263 26
(Reversal of allowance) FE(BERD)EE
allowance on inventories (355) 10,847
Interest expense MEFX 1,959 1,843
Interest income ) B WA (13,762) (5,483)
Loss on disposal/written HE,/MEmE -
off of property, plant and R REEBE
equipment 2,557 153
Loss on deregistration of R — S
a subsidiary NRZEE 2,256 —
Impairment loss recognised B RKER 2O’
on trade receivables RBEEE 253 —
Fair value loss on financial BATEFABRZ
assets at fair value PREECATE
through profit or loss BE 890 —
Share of results of JEIGERE DR 2 4
associates (3,244) (2,586)
Share of result of a joint EiE—HEeER a2
venture E (192) (50)
Operating cash flows before LEERFEHRI 2K
movements in working RERE
capital 172,218 190,830
(Increase) decrease in property ¥ &ixe (EN)H
rental deposits (4,728) 8,283
Decrease in inventories FERD 161,050 294,111
Increase in trade and other B 5 K H e YR AR 3% N
receivables (20,027) (7,748)
Increase in trade and other B 5 & EH A e BR 3% o0
payables 5,730 31,138
Decrease in contract liabilities A #BER D (1,304) —

A

Z-NEFRH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEBRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

78

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
e FET FEr
Cash generated from REXBREEZR S
operations 312,939 516,614
Income taxes refunded in RBEABRE RGN
Hong Kong = 44
Income taxes paid in Hong REBIZN 2 FEH
Kong (42,886) (13,483)
Income taxes paid in other REMBEER N2
jurisdictions FrigH (273) (103)
Net cash from operating REEBAEEA RS
activities SR 269,780 503,072
Investing activities REED
Purchase of financial assets BEERATET AR
at fair value through profit ZERMEE
or loss (74,048) —
Purchase of property, plant BEME  HMRERRE
and equipment (25,232) (17,448)
Deposits paid for acquisition BB - 3R KR tE
of property, plant and ZEfNEE
equipment (10,636) (3,000)
Purchase of debt instruments BEBEIRAFETAHM
at fair value through other FHKRZEBTE
comprehensive income (7,074) —
Net cash outflow from EEWEBETRE—ME
acquisition of a subsidiary MEBARIZEER
under asset acquisition FER 26 (4,155) —
Proceeds from disposal of HERAFEFABR
financial assets at fair value L EREBE S
through profit or loss FKIA 58,176 =
Interest received B F B 13,762 5,483
Proceeds from disposal HERAFEFT AREA
of equity investments at FHREZBRATE
fair value through other Z {5318
comprehensive income 7,969 —
Dividends received from [ A=l i g5
associates 1,676 2,727
Proceeds from disposal HERAFERF AHA
of debt instruments at FHEWEZEBIA
fair value through other Z 1S58
comprehensive income 314 =
Proceeds from disposal HEYHE -« BeSNRE
of property, plant and Z 18508
equipment 12 —
Purchase of available-for- HETHEESHEE
sale financial assets - (5,760)

RAXRTEBEBRQA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019

#HE=

Net cash used in investing

Fi

activities

nancing activities
Dividends paid

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid
Repurchase of shares
New bank loans raised

Net cash used in financing

Net increase in cash and cash
Cash and cash equivalents at

Effect of foreign exchange rate

activities

equivalents
the beginning of the year

changes

Cash and cash equivalents

at the end of the year,
represented by bank
balances and cash

F-NEF=F=1+—HIFE

REFSMEZRE F5
BEEE

ERRE
BERITER
ERFE

EEAEEE
HMERITER

BMEEBAE RS FH

RekFRBEEEBERZ
B hnFEE
FzREekERRE
EH
T“ﬁ@]ZE/g

FRZBERERRE
HAE - ARITHERN
RefK

Annual Report 2019

2019 2018
=L B — N\

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
e FET FET
(39,236) (17,998)
(196,832) (30,812)
(33,644) (44,761)
(1,959) (1,843)

(452) —

23,359 7,985
(209,528) (69,431)

21,016 415,643

1,081,891 645,188

(17,996) 21,060

1,084,911 1,081,891

—B-NEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

GENERAL

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and acts as an investment holding
company as well as engaged in watch trading. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 35. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
detailed in the corporate information section of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) has applied the following new and
amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs”) and HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the
related Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22  Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration
Amendments to Classification and Measurement of Share-based
HKFRS 2 Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” with
HKFRS 4 HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKAS 28 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property

HKAS 40

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B A% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

In addition, the Group has early applied Amendments
to HKFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation” which will be mandatorily effective for
the Group for the financial year beginning on 1 April
2019.

Except as described below, the application of the
new and amendments to HKASs and HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2018. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the
standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations.

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue mainly from
sales of watches which arise from contracts with
customers.

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in
notes 5 and 3 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 April 2018. Line items

FE R ¥R &8 M % 5 R
%El%ﬁﬂ%%&%ﬁﬁﬂj)&ﬂ%ﬂ

21 BRAMBREENEISHIFF
sk (E)

AEEER I WHET2RETP
BHRELEZHEEK -

ERAEERNEERERES
M REEANZSHER G
SR 2 B R D BRI RS B3
" -

NI EHEER B HEERFE
15 HELZ BB

AEEEHR -_T—N\FHA—
B2 e M BIMARAERZE
BIFHATHE - NMEEREZ

that were not affected by the changes have not LEEE JIAE o
been included.
Carrying Carrying
amount amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 March 2018  Reclassification 1 April 2018
R=B-NF
R=E-NE mA—-H
=B=1-H REEERK
RRIZH2 BEEAFE5H
REE BNOR ZEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TET
Current liabilities nBaE
Trade and other payables BHREMERER 126,076 (8,780) 117,296
Contract liabilities BHaRE - 8,780 8,780

As at 1 April 2018, advances from customers
of HK$8,780,000 in respect of advances from
customers for future purchases to be made by
customers previously included in trade and other
payables were reclassified to contract liabilities.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFIIEAMEHREELD
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ([BEAPMERELER]) RIEET
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS K(E)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 2.1
Customers” (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 15 has had no material
impact on the Group’s retained profits as at 1
April 2018.

The following table summaries the impact of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019 and its consolidated statement of cash flows
for each of the line items affected. Line items that
were not affected by the changes have not been
included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position

BEREMBRELEUF1SHEIEFR
Rk (E)

NIEEHEER B HREERE
15 FELZZHEB ()

EREBTBERELAE155H
%‘T$§%E’<\:§—A¢mﬂ —A
TIRE SR E A ZE o

TERBARSEIYEHBRE
REBMBEREERFE 155
AEBR-_ZE—NF=ZA=1+—
HZRA B RREGEHE
EMERITE - TBERZZ
ERETEIIEE o

HESMBRRARZHE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported  Reclassification HKFRS 15
KEREE
FBREEA
2HEH ENOE E15%2E8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables 85 REMENERR 119,026 7,476 126,502
Contract liabilities BHAaRE 7,476 (7,476) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash
flows

Operating activities Bexy
Increase in trade and other payables 25 R A ERETLM
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERYD

2. BRAMIERVBHREER
(TERMBHRERER ) RIEFT
(4 )

21 BERAUMBREEMNEISHIEFF
R (F)

HEERERERIXE

Amounts

without

application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
KEREE

BBREREA

EHEH AE E15% 228
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET
5,730 (1,304) 4,426
(1,304) 1,304 -

As at 31 March 2019, an amount of HK$7,476,000
in respect of advances from customers for
future purchases to be made by customers was
classified as contract liabilities and the amount will
be included in trade and other payables without
the application of HKFRS 15.

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, Amendments
to HKFRS 9 “Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation” and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for (1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses
(“ECL”) for financial assets and (3) general hedge
accounting.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments (Continued)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31
March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1
April 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
profits and other components of equity, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the effect arising
from application of HKFRS 9 at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

FERFEI &RV ®EER
(TERMBHREER ) RIEF
(4 )

22 ERMBREEUFORI A
TR IREBEBIERGE)

NI E B EHEEREI
RELZHER

TRFEARVEEABEH(=F
—N\FHA—R)EREBMG
BERAFEORELEZTE - T
REPFE ALY ERRE

7 o
Carrying Carrying
amount amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 9 at
31 March 2018  Remeasurement  Reclassification 1 April 2018
RZB-N%
R-B-N§ A-H
ZA=t-8 BEFENK
i EL RERRZR
ZREfHE EfiitE EHiNE ZEEE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FAT FAT FAT AT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available-for-sale (‘AFS")  AEEHE(THEE]) 2R  a
financial assets BE 12,344 - (12,344) -
Equity instruments at fair  EATEHAEMZEN a
value through other w((RATEFTALL
comprehengive income  2EXE ) ZRATA
(‘FvTOCI) - - 12,344 12,344
Current asset TBEE
Trade and other receivables &% R 2 e b 134,704 (3,808) = 130,896
Reserves il
Retained profits RE &R b 1,402,343 (3,808) — 1,398,535

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

AFS financial assets

From AFS financial assets to equity instruments at
FVTOCI

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) for the fair value changes of all its
equity investments previously classified as AFS. These
investments are not held for trading and not expected
to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9, equity investments with a
carrying value of HK$12,344,000 were reclassified from
AFS financial assets to equity instruments at FVTOCI.
All of these investments were previously measured
at fair value under HKAS 39. The fair value gains of
HK$6,932,000 relating to those investments previously
carried at fair values continued to be accumulated in
asset revaluation reserve.

Impairment under ECL model

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an ECL model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The ECL model requires
an entity to account for ECL and changes in those ECL
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measure ECL using lifetime
ECL for trade receivables. To measure the ECL, trade
receivables have been assessed individually and/or
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.

Loss allowance for other financial assets at amortised
cost mainly comprise of other receivables and bank
balances, are measured on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”")
basis and there had been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition.
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(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the
related amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance
of HK$3,808,000 has been recognised against retained
profits. The additional loss allowance is charged against
the trade receivables.

All loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 March
2018 reconcile to the opening loss allowances of trade
receivables as at 1 April 2018 are as follows:

2. BRAMIERVBHREER
(TERMBHREER ) RIEF
(&)

22 ERMBREEUFORI A
TR IREBEBIERGE)

NI E B EHEEREI
RELZZHEBI ()

Hiet - (&
(b) BEHREEEBREXTZREE)

R-ZZ—/\FWA—HB  F#EIMz
B 5 1B B H% 2 3,808,000 7 T B #E
RERBRF - BINSIBERE
ANE SRR -

RZZE-N\F=A=+—HE5H
FEUWBR R Z PR A B R B AN —
Z-N\FMOA—-HESRERER

ZEVEBBEE 2 HERAT

HK$’000
FET

At 31 March 2018 (audited) — HKAS 39 R-BE-N\E=ZA=1+—B(EE%R)
— BBGEAERE 395 —

Amounts remeasured through opening BEVNRBENEFTEZ S

retained profits 3,808
At 1 April 2018 (restated) R=ZZFE—N\FMA—HEE5) 3,808

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement
of financial position arising from the
application of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Company’s
accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position had
been restated. The following table summarises the
adjustments recognised for the relevant individual

FE R $T ] & 78 B A% 3 5 22 R
(TERMBHREER ) RIEFT
x(#E)

2.3 ERMEHIEAHFANREH
BRAKRMEEZZE

HRARRBZ ST BRREE it
Bt MFVREEMBARRKA
B2 - TREIIBLEERIHEE A
Rl < HEE -

line item.
31 March 1 April
2018 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
—E-N\F BEEME BEUK
=A ¥ 5 2 A HWEER —FT—N\F
=+—H $£155% £ WMA—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
(Audited) (Restated)
(LE=Z) (&&E7)
Non-current IRBEE
assets
AFS financial assets AJ{ &SR EE 12,344 — (12,344) —
Equity instruments A FEF AHA
at FVTOCI 2HE W 2 IR
TA — — 12,344 12,344
Current asset REEE
Trade and other B 5 R HMEWR
receivables R 134,704 — (3,808) 130,896
Current liabilities #REE&E
Trade and other B REMEN
payables BRI 126,076 (8,780) — 117,296
Contract liabilities A% EE — 8,780 — 8,780
Reserves f#1E
Retained profits R = 1,402,343 — (3,808) 1,398,535
Annual Report 2019 —E-NFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE-—F—-NEFZH=1—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

2019.
determined.

2021.

Leases’

Insurance Contracts®

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Definition of a Business’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015
— 2017 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at costs
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group,
and upfront prepaid lease payments will continue to
be presented as investing or operating cash flows in
accordance to the nature, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$281,658,000
as disclosed in note 29. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$54,460,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted
to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-
of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group will elect the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 “Determining Whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not
reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a
lease which already existed prior to the date of initial
application. Furthermore, the Group will elect the
modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulate
effect of initial application to opening retained profits
without restating the comparative information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S AR MY aE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of OCI are attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial

statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar B 7 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented,
separately from the Group’s entity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non—
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S AR MY aE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in OCI in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
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3.

E-AFZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee Benefits” respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to the financial assets and
financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other individual identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.
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3.

E-AFZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of associates and a joint venture is
described below.

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
a joint venture are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
a joint venture used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and OCI of the associate or
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and OCI are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate or joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective that
the interest in an associates or a joint venture may
be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of entire interest in the
investee with resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS
9/HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in OCI in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 S AR Y o

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

The revenue of the Group arising from sales of
watches is generally recognised at a point in time when
customer acceptance has been obtained, which is the
point of time when the customer has the ability to direct
the use of these products and obtain substantially all of
the remaining benefits of these products.

The revenue of the Group arising from the provision of
watch repair service is generally recognised over time,
which is over the term of the relevant service period as
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the entity.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S AR MY aE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Warranties

If a customer has the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty as a
separate performance obligation and allocates a portion
of the transaction price to that performance obligation.

If a customer does not have the option to purchase
a warranty separately, the Group accounts for the
warranty in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” unless
the warranty provides the customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications (i.e. service-type
warranties).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The
asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to
which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for
estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar
allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Watch repair service income is recognised when
services are provided.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of show
window rental income is described in the accounting
policy for leasing below.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S AR MY aE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is classified as a finance lease and accounted for
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method or
reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 S AR Y o

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). The recoverable amount of
tangible assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S AR MY aE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Contingent rentals are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

-

3.

E-AFZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rate fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in OCI| and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE=

3.

F-NEF=F=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs which are not attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are not eligible for capitalisations, and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arises from initial recognition of
goodwill, or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
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3.

E-AFZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a joint
venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
OCI or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for business combination.

Inventories

Inventories, which are finished goods held for sale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on a specific identification basis for
watches. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar B 7 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 April
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II\Ii\

B RIS SRR MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE=

3.

F-NEF=F=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar B 7 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(i)

(ii

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in OCI and accumulated in the
asset revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S AR MY aE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

)

(i)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
(Continued)

Dividends on these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income, gains
and losses” line item in profit or loss.

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts
for debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as
a result of interest income calculated using the
effective interest method are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount
of these debt instruments are recognised in OCI
and accumulated under the heading of asset
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to OCI without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. The amounts
that are recognised in profit or loss are the same
as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these debt instruments had been
measured at amortised cost. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar B 7 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

(iv) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI nor
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss included any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the “other
income, gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS
9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, other
receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI, and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

3.

TESHEGE)

EMIAE)
EHEE(E)

EREENDIERERKTEREN
it 28 RNEX BB & ER)
FIFK) (&)

(v) ERFEFAABDZZEHEE

TR EE TN AR E R AN
BAFHESAREE K
ERBRAFEFAREMEE RS
R - BIFR A FEFT ABEET

=
EL©

REZHMBPK - MAFEFAR
SNEREERATEFE M
EA A FEW S ERN B R E
R o MR ER MU e R F
HERAEREEMRRNE
B S A S - Wt Al E ALK
A WEREERIBERA -

& a B B E (1R 75 Y it 2 48 )% 1% X
JEF BB & BRI 91 )

AEERBBMBHRELERFERA
TATHREZEREE(BRESE
WAk - B EUCROR ~ IR ER
AR A2 W 2 B T A R IRITHE
BRIEREREEERCBEREE -
EMEEBESENSE2RAHE
#ro ARER B VR RERENEERR

FEMBHEEEEENEEIAZ
B ERFEMABENAA AT REE
MEMMEFWAEREEEE -
12 AEMESBRREERR
EHEMRI2EAARNAIEEELENE
NEAMERN Y FEPRYBEE
EiE - BHEEEERBEASEIRE
EEERERETIGE - AREBERIK
RERERE - —REFERRARY
REH B H 2R B RFARRTER 2
A MEL TR

RAXRTEEBRLQF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II\Ii\

B RIS SRR MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE=

3.

F-NEF=F=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019

R —FE-NF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II\Ii\

B RIS SRR MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it
has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating
of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i)  Definition of default

The Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019

R FE—-NF=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B 35 AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019

-

3.

E-AFZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B A% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets unless the
financial assets are credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For investments
in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
the loss allowance is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve
without reducing the carrying amount of these
debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B 35 AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019

-

E-AFZA=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of

two categories,

including loans and receivables and

AFS financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

(i)

)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables and bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

AFS financial assets are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in OCl and accumulated in
asset revaluation reserve, until the financial asset
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the asset revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy
on impairment loss of financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial
assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period granted, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
in OCl and accumulated under the heading of asset
revaluation reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the asset revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
asset revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the

cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
asset revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar B 7 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank loans are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.
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BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts (Continued)

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at FVTPL is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 April
2018)/HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” (before application of HKFRS 9 on
1 April 2018); and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes, including Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme and the employee’s pension scheme of the
respective municipal governments in various places in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) where the
Group operates, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled shared-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to profit
or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the
fair values of the goods or services received, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options granted.
The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following is the key assumption concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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4.

E-AFZA=1—HILFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Valuation of watches

Watches are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The management of the Group reviews
regularly the suitability of the Group’s allowance policy
for watches and carries out review of the watches at
the end of each reporting period. The management
of the Group identifies slow-moving watches with
reference to ageing analysis and determines the
net realisable value for watches by considering
the saleability of watches based on current market
conditions, future sales plan and latest available sales
information of similar watches. When the expectation
of the net realisable value is less than the cost, further
allowance may arise. Details of the allowance for slow-
moving watches charged (credited) during the year
and the carrying amount of watches (net of allowance)
as at 31 March 2019 are set out in notes 8 and 19,
respectively.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operation is principally sales of watches.
The Group’s revenue represents consideration received
or receivable from sales of watches.

The Group has two operating segments, which are
analysed based on geographical markets of the goods
sold, being (a) Hong Kong, and (b) Taiwan, Macau and
the PRC, which is also the basis of organisation of
the Group for managing the business operations. The
Group determines its operating segments based on the
internal reports reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker that are used to allocate resources and assess
performance. No operating segments identified by the
chief operating decision maker have been aggregated
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time)

For sales of watches, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at the
point the customer purchases the goods at the store.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at
the point the customer purchases the goods.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

Sales-related warranties associated with sales of
watches cannot be purchased separately and they
serve as an assurance that the products sold comply
with agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the
Group accounts for warranties in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” consistent with its previous
accounting treatment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WERDEER(Z)

(Continued)

HEEZR(WERE -KHEMER)
(&)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time) (Continued)

AT RARBEREED S| D 208
Yeas B AT -

The following is an analysis of the Group’s segment
revenue and results by operating segments:

Segment revenue —
recognised at
a point in time

DERWEE — REFRFER

Segment profit
7 Bz

2019 2018 2019 2018
=Ly T )\F e T —)\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET FET FET
Hong Kong B55 1,448,880 2,179,921 128,976 162,988
Taiwan, Macau 8- - RBFK
and the PRC s 988,304 711,771 50,662 18,406
2,437,184 2,891,692 179,638 181,394
Unallocated other K% Bt & W A
income 13,762 5,483
Unallocated ROBEERT
corporate
expenses (34,902) (22,979)
Finance costs BE AR (1,959) (1,843)
Share of results of [E{GELZ N T Z
associates E 3,244 2,586
Share of result of E{E—MAE
a joint venture NAZEHE 192 50
Profit before B 54 B A
taxation 159,975 164,691
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point
in time) (Continued)

The accounting policies used to determine segment
revenue and results are the same as the accounting
policies adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements described in note 3. Segment profit
represents the profit before taxation earned by each
segment without allocation of finance costs, share
of results of associates and a joint venture and
unallocated other income and corporate expenses.
Unallocated corporate expenses include auditor’s
remuneration, directors’ emoluments, net exchange
losses/gains and operating expenses of inactive
companies. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker of the Group for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has no customer who contributed over 10%

of the total revenue of the Group for any of the two
years ended 31 March 2019.

All segment revenue is generated from external
customers for both years.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by operating segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lNi\

BB HRRM

For the year ended 31 March 2019

H#E2=—

F-NEF=ZF=1+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

5. WERDEER(E)

Sales of watches (revenue recognised at a point HESRWBENE—SHYH®EA)
in time) (Continued) (%)
Segment assets Segment liabilities
DEEE PWMEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F —E-NEF & — \F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Hong Kong %)% 838,590 892,402 85,669 72,714
Taiwan, Macau 58 RFR
and the PRC F 454,310 552,866 40,833 53,362
Segment total o Ep ARt 1,292,900 1,445,268 126,502 126,076
Unallocated FoE 1,115,329 1,094,669 68,126 96,909
Group’s total NEBEB5T 2,408,229 2,639,937 194,628 222,985
The segment assets by location of assets are the same REEMEME D 2 Hn eV EEREIRH
as by location of markets of the goods sold. EGomEZNBEEIDEMRE -

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than equity instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL,
AFS financial assets, deferred tax assets, taxation
recoverable, bank balances and cash and
unallocated corporate assets; and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities
and bank loans. Bank loans are classified as
unallocated corporate liabilities because they are
managed centrally by the treasury function of the
Group.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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BATEA - mAFEFARMLE
ERHZEBTEA  RAFER
ANBHZEREE  AIHEES
RMEE ELHEBEE - KO
HIA - RITER MRS AR KD

EERBIEEI - FIEEEADE

?:%*é ENEL: K&

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ
BN - Fﬁﬁ%ﬁi’ﬂ"ﬁﬂ
%@n‘*ﬁ R ERTT EE$’§
Bz EBEMETE EE W8
R/ARDERARIE -

:T‘l $>

JE1 B -

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E—NF=ZF=F+—HILFE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment results or
segment assets:

5. WHERDIER(E)

Htt o HER

AENBEERNMEERBREZE
G

{s]

Impairment loss
Loss on disposal of  recognised in respect  Increase (decrease) in

Additions of property, property, plantand  of property, plantand  non-current property

plant and equipment Depreciation equipment equipment rental deposits

HENE K2R g BERRE FhanEae

FENE  BEDAR it Y. LEYAN fERM(HY)

2018 218 2018 218 2018

FNE “F-)\E 5NE “F-)E E-\#

HK$'000 HKk$'000 HKk$'000 HKk$'000 HKk$'000

TAT AT TAT AT TAT

Hong Kong Bk 19328 11715 12456 12071 2,553 109 - - 1,192 (15317)
Taiwan, Macauand the 4% - B b

PRC 11,289 9,990 9,108 9,285 4 i 263 2% (546) (416)

Segment total PR 0612 21706 24564 21,306 2,557 183 263 2% 646 (15,733

Unallocated il - - 54 8 - - - - - -

Group’s total KB 0612 21700 24618 21389 2,55 183 263 2% 646 (15,733

Information about the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding equity instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, AFS financial assets and
deferred tax assets) by geographical location of the
assets is detailed below:

Hong Kong BB
Taiwan, Macau and the PRC A& BFARFE

Annual Report 2019

REEMGEMRSID 2 AKREIFRE
BE(MERERAFHERFARMEZEK
@mZBATR - mAFEFARME
mhEZEBIA AIHEESRE
ERERRAEE) BRI

Carrying amount of
non-current assets

FRBEEZREE
2019 2018
St AN T \F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
280,472 268,519
40,413 41,306
320,885 309,825
—E-NEEH 139



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 6.

Other income Hablg A

Show window rental income B E A WA

Interest income FEWA

Repairing service income HEE RFEIA

Others HAh

Other gains and losses Hib s R B8

Loss on disposal/written off of HEMWEEmE - #ER
property, plant and equipment R EE

Net exchange (losses) gains M (B8 W 558

Loss from changes in fair value AT EFAEZRZ S
of financial assets at FVTPL BEZ N FEEHESE

B 5 BRI R EREE

Impairment loss on trade

receivables
Loss on deregistration of a B —EMB AT 2
subsidiary B8
7. FINANCE COSTS 7.

Interest on bank loans IRITERZHE

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

HtA ~ s R &R

2019 2018
—E-hE —E2—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
21,694 20,264
13,762 5,483
1,323 1,271
5,296 5,848
42,075 32,866
(2,557) (153)
(5,063) 6,157
(890) —
(253) —
(2,256) —
(11,019) 6,004
31,056 38,870
& A
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,959 1,843

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after (crediting)
charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 9)

Other staff’s retirement benefits
scheme contributions

Other staff costs

Total staff costs

Auditor’s remuneration

(Reversal of allowance) allowance
for slow-moving watches

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of property, plant and
equipment (included in other
income, gains and losses)

Minimum operating lease rentals
in respect of rented premises

Annual Report 2019

8. PFR¥LAIEF

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
B AR FE (FFA)
Bk -
EEME (HiE9) 26,583 25,963
H M5B 2 BRIREFETE
K 4,789 4,805
H AR 8 A 102,021 114,310
BB A B 133,393 145,078
% B A BN 3,190 2,960
EEE T ik (BB RE ) BE
(355) 10,847
M MBERBEITE
21,618 21,389
PYE - SRR ETER
ZREEE(BEEMK
A~ Wz K EE)
263 26
EHAMEMH 2 &IELE
HEMRS 162,268 169,276
—E-NFFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar e B A% SRR MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing
Rules and Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The

9. EEREEZHE

EERTTRARZ AFEHMIIRE
ERLEMRAREBBRBRPIHKE
BENSERNR(ZE—N\F : \&)

emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2018: BEESAZBET :
eight) directors were as follows:
2019 218
3 5.3 5-)\&
Retirement Performance- Retirement  Performance-
Salaries henefits related Selaries benefits related
and other scheme incentive and other scheme incentive
Fees henefits  contributions honus Fegs benefits  contributions bonus Total
EeR BUER  ZBEB ek BRARH RREE
we  EEEAW  HEMR  #ERA e EBEN  HEER £ERM g
HKS§000 HK§'000 HK§:000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
7AL 73 7L 7AT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
(note) (note)
i) )
Bxecutive directors 782
Dr YeungMing B~ BHERT - 2123 18 5,325 8,066 - 2722 18 5,250 7,990
Mr. Yeung HimKit,  Bfiede
Dennis - 3414 423 3,550 1,387 - 3,125 4 3,500 7,048
Madam Yeung Man ~ BEELT
Yes, Shirlgy - 197 108 1,775 2,680 - 197 108 1,750 2,655
Mr.LamHngLun,  #EEEE
Alain - 1,682 29 1,775 3,896 - 1752 239 1,750 3,74
Mr. Choi Kok Yum B854 - 1,969 210 1,775 4,014 - 1969 210 1,750 3,989
hndependent non- ~ BikETEE
executive directors
Dr.SunPngHsu,  FEERL
Samson 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
DrliSwHng — ZHEEL
Eddy 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
M. Chol Man =yt
Chau, Michael 180 - - - 180 180 - - - 180
540 10,785 1,058 14,200 26,583 540 10,365 1,068 14,000 25,963

Note: The performance-related incentive bonus is determined as a
percentage of the profit for the year before bonus charge.

All the five highest paid employees of the Group were
executive directors of the Company. Details of their
emoluments are disclosed above.

Mr. Yeung Him Kit, Dennis is also the chief executive
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the chief
executive.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Hat - RIVAE B RENFEATIRHIBRAEAL S H AT F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019

9.

10.

BE-—FE-NEF=ZH=1—HIFEZE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9.

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group. The emoluments of independent non-executive
directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors and five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the

EENEEZME(F)

EXFRTRATES ZME IR ERR
RUEBAEEARAINAKE SR 2
RIMAS « EXFAIRBYIERTE
SZME IR BEFEEEARBESAH
REZRBEMS AT °

FAAKRBYERNEZRAVES
FA LN EMME - ERIMAK
SEEMAREER RN BAER
BEBA(E - FAMBEE SR

directors has waived any emoluments during the year. & o
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FIEHIRAX

The charge comprises: T HBE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENEH
— Current year — KEFE
— Overprovision in prior years — BAFEHBERE
Taxation in other jurisdictions B al AR BiIE
— Current year — KFE
— Overprovision in prior years — BAFEHBERE
— Withholding tax on dividend — BEARREKAZ
income from associates A

Deferred taxation charge (credit) EZERIAX E (K %)
(note 24) (H1et24)

Annual Report 2019

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

20,769 24,526
(357) (76)
20,412 24,450
1,600 1,065
(794) (43)
352 545
1,158 1,657
366 (1)
21,936 26,006
ZE-NEFER
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will
be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%, after
setting off of tax losses brought forward, if any.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and at
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, Hong Kong Profits
Tax was calculated at a flat rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits, after setting off of tax
losses brought forward, if any.

Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
for both years, after setting off of tax losses brought
forward, if any.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar B 7 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

10. FiSHBAX (&)

R-ZE—NE=A=-+—08 FBEY
e B iE1ITERBEUERT )(ET
FORBIERNEFIEZR]) - ZE5)
BRI AFESHEMES - ZIEHIEZR
RZZBE-NEFE=A=+N\BEERAE
FE - TREBAREBRETIE - BE
FISTHMARS - SEREETEEM
& 2,000,000 7% 7T )% F1/ 1% 8.25% 2 Ft
KBTI - WHEIZ 16.5% 2 T K5
492,000,000 JT A 3% F 2 18 o
REFESHEMAHERZEBER
A AR A M IEEEZ (I
BIEERETEMNE16.5%TH °

Eit - BAFERE - 3 & 2,000,000
PB TCAd BT FE SR B 5 1132 8.25% 2 Fi K
BMBEBRNGEH - WKL 16.5% 28
K4 472,000,000 78 7T A L E 5T FERR
R A 2 BAFIEH o

BE_Z-N\F=ZA=+—RHIL*#F
B - BRNGSHRIIREBMGERT G
MREHEE N HRIAEBER(WHE )R
EEME16.5% & °

H i R AR 2 B8 iR A =0l
NOERIRBITMERAHE o

RIB(PBEEEABRENEEMAE
BOE ) RAEEFRBHRIZE GG
REHGEENTHBEBRRME)
RREFETENBARZRER
25% °

RAXRTEEBRLQF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FSBiBAR (42)
The tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FAMBERZATEBEGEE B RE
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement i 2 T U R 2R 2 BR A AT e AN 5 BR 40
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as T
follows:

2019 2018

=t B E —TN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT

Profit before taxation [ B3 BT v A 159,975 164,691

Tax at the applicable income tax 1RIBEEAFTEHRHE 16.5%

rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZZ—N\F : 16.5%)
87 FHIA 26,396 27,174

Tax effect of share of results of  EIHEEE N R Z ¥EE 2T

associates B2 (535) (427)
Tax effect of share of result of a EBH—RAE Qa2 ¥4E

joint venture BB (32) (8)
Tax effect of expenses not A HRAS 2 BT E

deductible for tax purposes 1,939 645
Tax effect of income not taxable HEZRFHWA ZFHIETE

for tax purposes (872) (812)
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERMBEEB BB

recognised A 62 191
Tax effect of temporary BERNRIR—EEE AT

differences attributable R IR m F G 2 B By

to undistributed profits of ERRIMIGHE

associates and a joint venture 689 520
Effect of different tax rates of E’\‘ 1@ AERER & 2 BT

subsidiaries operating in other RNAEIFER TR E

jurisdictions ‘?-"Qgég (600) (395)
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBRERE (1,151) (119)
Utilisation of tax losses previously B 2 A R HER 2 Fii%

not recognised &8 (3,822) (785)
Income tax at concessionary rate B R FT1EH (165) -
Others HAh 27 22
Tax expense for the year FABIALZ 21,936 26,006

Annual Report 2019 —hEFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

11. DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Interim dividend for financial year ended
31 March 2019 of 2.8 HK cents
(2018: 2.0 HK cents) per share on
570,358,224 (2018: 570,610,224)
shares

Interim special dividend for financial
year ended 31 March 2019 of 8.7
HK cents (2018: nil) per share on
570,358,224 shares

Final dividend for financial year ended
31 March 2018 of 8.0 HK cents
(2017: 0.4 HK cent) per share on
570,610,224 (2017: 570,610,224)
shares

Special dividend for financial year ended
31 March 2018 of 15.0 HK cents
(2017: 3.0 HK cents) per share on
570,610,224 (2017: 570,610,224)
shares

Dividends proposed after year end (note): 4
570,358,224 R (—ZF— )\

Proposed final dividend for financial
year ended 31 March 2019 of 8.0 HK
cents (2018: 8.0 HK cents) per share
on 570,358,224 (2018: 570,610,224)
shares

Proposed special dividend for financial
year ended 31 March 2019 of 13.5
HK cents (2018: 15.0 HK cents)
per share on 570,358,224 (2018:
570,610,224) shares

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

1. BE

FRNEHEAR/DRLBE :

570,358,224 (= — )\

F 1 570,610,224 %) Bk
HEZHE-_T-NF=A
=+ — BB REEF R
BERKR28BI(ZE—N
F:2.058)

1£570,358,224 AR (AT E 2

BE_T-NF=A=1-—
B IFBBR & 2 o B BUR 8,
R8T A(ZF-N\F -
)

570,610,224 % (=T —+

F 1 570,610,224 i%) B 13
HE HE_T-N\F=H
=+ —RUHMBEERAR
BERS.OBIN(ZE—t
£ 0.45840)

1570,610,224 K (=T —+

F 1 570,610,224 %) Bk

HEVBE-_ZT-)\&=H
=+ —BUHBEERRIR
BER15.08MU(ZE—+t
F:3.0/8)

RER 2 BB (HiE) -

F 1 570,610,224 f% ) Bk 1
HEVBE-_T-NE=R
=+—HIFBRFEREER
Bk S EBRS.OBM(=F
—N\E : 8.051l)

1£570,358,224 g (= F— N1\

F 1 570,610,224 f% ) B 1

HEZHE-_T-NF=A
=+ —BUHREEEIRE
RIS B 13.581(=F
— N\ 15.07l)

2019 2018
—E-hF “E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
15,970 11,412
49,621 —
45,649 2,282
85,592 17,118
196,832 30,812
45,629 45,649
76,998 85,592
122,627 131,241
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE—E—NEF=ZA=1+—HIFE

11.

12.

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

Note: Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
and a special dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019
have been proposed by the directors of the Company and are
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

share attributable to owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

Earnings 2

Earnings for the purposes of basic 5t & &R E A & # 5%

11. RE (&)

Bt MERPRE  ARARESRRBEE—
E-NAF=A=1+—HIFEZRHR
BREFRIRRE - A BN EERRR
gL -

12. BREF

ARREBABEEREAREER
FITYREIA TR E

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET

and diluted earnings per share arz A
(profit for the year attributable to (AR GHEA AEIEER
owners of the Company) i lp) 138,099 138,763
2018
—E-N\F
‘000
Fhg
Number of shares RGAER
Weighted average number of SAEEREREN 2 EEK
ordinary shares for the purpose  fI#EFEHH
of basic earnings per share 570,501 570,610
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary JE7E & L@k 2 £
shares
— share options — MR = —
Weighted average number of AESREERN TR
ordinary shares for the purpose  fI#E &
of diluted earnings per share 570,501 570,610

The diluted earnings per share for both years has not
included the effect from the Company’s share options
because the exercise prices of the share options are
higher than the average market price of the shares of
the Company.

Annual Report 2019

PR B 2 5 1R 9 2 A
ARBREZYE - 1T R B R
21T EBERAR ARG 2 T8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - BWSE R B8

148

Leasehold Furniture,
land and fixtures and Motor
buildings equipment vehicles Total
HE B
TREF HERRE AE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FBT FET FAT FHET
COST A&
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+tEMA—H 184,892 250,171 3,564 438,627
Exchange adjustment RS 2,333 9,418 - 11,751
Additions NE — 21,705 — 21,705
Disposals/written off HE/His - (20,838) - (20,838)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N$=A=+—H 187,225 260,456 3,564 451,245
Exchange adjustment  [EX % (1,498) (5,705) - (7,203)
Additions NE — 25,134 1,278 26,412
Acquisition of a subsidiary 428 — K B 2 5 (4152 26)

(note 26) 4,200 — — 4,200
Disposals/written off HE/#isH - (20,400) (597) (20,997)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NE=A=+—H 189,927 259,485 4,245 453,657
DEPRECIATION AND rEREE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMA—-A 35,640 191,870 2,254 229,764
Exchange adjustment BE 5 302 1,222 8,713 - 9,935
Provided for the year KEERE 4,027 17,123 239 21,389
Impairment loss RERERZHEESE

recognised in profit or

loss — 26 — 26
Eliminated on disposals/ & /##8 %1 3

written off — (20,685) — (20,685)
At 31 March 2018 R-ZE-N\E=HA=+—H 40,889 197,047 2,493 240,429
Exchange adjustment RS (819) (4,850) - (5,669)
Provided for the year KEERE 4,079 17,303 236 21,618
Impairment loss REGRRAHEERE

recognised in profit or

loss — 263 — 263
Eliminated on disposals/ & /i 8555 &3

written off — (17,937) (491) (18,428)
At 31 March 2019 R_ZE-NF=A=T—H 44,149 191,826 2,238 238,213
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=+—H 145,778 67,659 2,007 215,444
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F=A=+—H 146,336 63,409 1,071 210,816

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y% - WBERRE#)

(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, using straight-line
method or reducing balance method at the following
rates per annum:

Straight-line method:

Leasehold land Over 20 years for those located
and buildings in the PRC or 50 years for
those located in Hong Kong

Reducing balance method:

Furniture, fixtures 20%
and equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Owner-occupied leasehold land located in Hong
Kong and the PRC is included in property, plant and
equipment because the allocation between the land
portion and building portion cannot be made reliably.

The carrying value of property WMEZHREERR

comprises:

Properties located in: IR TN BE 2 W2
Hong Kong B
PRC ==

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the directors
conducted a review of the Group’s assets and
determined that the assets of a subsidiary were
impaired because it is expected that these assets will
not generate future benefit to the Group. Accordingly,
impairment loss of HK$263,000 (2018: HK$26,000) has
been recognised in respect of those assets.

Annual Report 2019

P& RLERERREIEBUE AT
FRERMHFEDF MR MERBEEZ
PR

BEHE
HELHE URPRABB20F
Bx R EB R 50 F
ERERIE R ¢
b~ HER 20%
R A
RE 20%

HRUREELRTEzETEMAEE
Ti 2 T AR R F R D TRER] 5
wE D - WEXTERBEELITIEA
ME - R RRE -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

136,008 134,703
9,770 11,633
145,778 146,336

REBEE-_Z—NE=A=+—HILEE -
BEEHASBENEEETRNIETE —MH
MEBARMEECDRE EAEHZEE
ESTEAREBELEREKNZ - At
B Bt 52 %5 & B TR R B B3 18 263,000 7% 7T
(Z=Z— )\ : 26,0008 7T) °

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 14. (FEEE AT 2 EXH

Cost of investments in unlisted RIEEMEE RN 2R E

associates P AR

Exchange adjustments B i, 3 &

Share of post-acquisition profits, FE{GUEEE SRR - 1k
net of dividends received 2R E

Included in the interests of investments are goodwill
of HK$15,342,000 (2018: HK$16,089,000) arising on
acquisition of associates.

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 March 2019
and 2018 are as follows:

Proportion

Place of of ownership

incorporation interest

Name of associate and operation 2019 & 2018
P

FER LB

& i A 3L K —E-hEFR

BMENTER EE B —E-N\F
NFEERMDERAET Taiwan 40%
XFTEEERAR D AR AR Taiwan 40%
mAT Bk ARD AR AR Taiwan 40%

150 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
30,201 30,201
(834) 1,176
7,970 6,402
37,337 37,779

REERPEIERARER S AFME
K7 BE 15,342,000 T (ZZE— )\
£ : 16,089,000787T) ©

REEBRERRRE—NER=ZT
—N\F=ZA=+—HZHBNAT :

Proportion
of voting
power held
2019 & 2018 Principal activity
BEZ
RERELLH
ZE-AEFR
—E-NF FEER

40% Watch trading
40% Watch trading
40% Watch trading

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B A% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=ZF=+—HILFE

14. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 14. {EBtE QDRI 2w (#)
Aggregate information of associates that are not WIEERIEAZBE AR 2 a5t ER

individually material

2019 2018
—E-NEF —FT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
The Group’s share of profit and  ZN£= [ FE(5 % 71| &
total comprehensive income FEHRRERE 3,244 2,586
Aggregate carrying amount of REBGEZEBREARZ
the Group’s interests in these Em EETREE
associates 37,337 37,779
15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. (E—REE AR ZER
2018
—E-NEF —T-N\F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Cost of investment in an unlisted R—RIZELFHTAEL AT Z
joint venture TE KA 21,793 21,793
Exchange adjustments R (948) 652
Share of post-acquisition profits  FEfG U & 18 3% Kl 5,160 4,968
26,005 27,413
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

15. INTEREST IN A JO
(Continued)

INT VENTURE

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 March 2019

and 2018 are as follows:

Name of
joint venture

BELAREH

EREXEERBR AR
(“Huimei”) ([[E3 1)

Proportion

Place of of ownership

incorporation interest

and operation 2019 & 2018

FRE#E

LB

& i AR 32 B —E-NFR

EE MR —E2-NF

The PRC 40%
1 [

Note: The Group holds 40% of the paid-in capital of Huimei. Huimei

is jointed controlled by
equity owner by virtue

the Group and the other significant
of contractual arrangements among

equity owners. Therefore, Huimei is classified as a joint venture

of the Group.

Included in the interest of investments is goodwill
of HK$4,013,000 (2018: HK$4,262,000) arising on
acquisition of Huimei during the year ended 31 March

2012.

Information of the joint venture that is not

individually material

The Group’s share of profit and
total comprehensive income

Carrying amount of the

interest in the joint venture

Oriental Watch

RER B E R K2
2 H WA

AEBIEZAERAZ
it < BREE

Group’s

Holdings Limited

15. th—RE &

ENF 2 EmHF)

AEELURTARB-NER=T
—N\E=A=+—RZHEMT :

Proportion
of voting
power held
2019 & 2018
BEZ
REREL A
“E-NAFR
—E-N\EF

Principal activity

ETEREK

40% Watch trading
(note) FERLLHH
(K1:E)

Hret AREERBAEXEBRARZ 40% ° EX
HAEBEEE N ZBRI 28R
RARE MRS —FAREREA AKRE

#l e Bt - BEXDBERAKBEZAER

7 o

KERRPBEEAREBE-ZS——F
A=+ HIEFERKBEEZME
A2 B2 4,013,000 T(ZZE— N
1 4,262,000/87T) °

UHBEREAZEE AR ZEHR

2019 2018
—EB-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$’°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
192 50
26,005 27,413
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E—NF=ZF=F+—HILFE

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 16.
ASSETS/EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(i) AFS financial assets

Listed investments at fair value EAFEFEZ FHIRE

Equity securities listed in REB LT 2BRARTS
Hong Kong

Unlisted investments at BAVESECZHELET
fair value REEBEASKREMRE

Managed fund portfolio

As detailed in note 2, the Group’s AFS financial
assets as at 31 March 2018 have been reclassified
to appropriate category of financial assets upon
adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018.

(ii) Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Listed investments EHRE
Equity securities listed in RER LT 2 BRAE 5
Hong Kong (note a) (Htita)
Unlisted investments ELTHIRE
Managed fund portfolio ERESKREMRS
(note b) (HieEb)

Annual Report 2019

AHHESMEE B ATE
FFARMEEREZRATA

() ATHHESHEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

- 12,293

- 12,344

AR 27 - R=F—N\
FOA—-BARABTBUBREE
A9 ik AEER_F—N
FZA=T—BzAHHLESH
BECEFN D HREEEZERE
BRI -

(i) BATFEFAEMZARSE ZKR
;=

2019 2018
—2-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T

41 —

3,866 =

3,907 =

Z-NEFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE-—F—-NEFZH=1—HILFE

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS/EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

(ii) Equity instruments at FVTOCI (Continued)

Notes:

(@) At the end of the reporting period, all the equity
securities listed in Hong Kong are stated at fair values,
which have been determined with reference to quoted

bid prices in an active market.

(o)  The managed fund portfolio as at 31 March 2019
comprises of unlisted investments. The fund is stated at
fair value, which have been determined with reference to
the quoted market prices provided by brokers which are

financial institutions.

The directors of the Company have elected to
designate these investments in equity instruments as
at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term
fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or
loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy
of holding these investments for long-term purposes
and realising their performance in the long run.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

16. AHHESREE RAF¥E

ATARMEEREZRATA
(#)

(i) BAFEFAHMEZEKRFEZR
KITAHE)

HaE -

@ RERHAKR HERBEBELTZ
BAFEFTDRAFEAE AT
SRNERM IS REET -

b) RZZE-—NF=A=+—HZE
BESREMAABEIF LTI
& ZERATEAR  HTY
2RMEE(RERBERE)REHN
TEERT IS BT

HRARBESHE  BRZFRE
KB R 2 AR 2 5 BRI
SERRRENMBAEXSRENE
RERERBAZREAN  HUHERE
BREZERATAREEERERT
Bt AR 2 EURE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

17. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Listed investments EHERE

Debt securities listed in overseas with
fixed interests ranging from 1.56% to
4.25% per annum and maturity dates

ranging from 16 May 2019 to

17. AR EFAREMEERBE 2

(CC

2019
—E-hE

HK$’000
FET

FFNENT1.56% F 4.25% kT
RZZE—NFRA+TAAE=ZE
—ZEF+AZ+/NAEHEHZE
ETEBES

26 October 2020 3,683
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong with  FF|REFA£2.50% MR T -F
fixed interests 2.50% per annum and F+—AZ-+N\BEHzEE L
maturity date on 28 November 2020 MBS E 75 1,568
Unlisted investments FELTIRE
Debt securities issued in overseas with FMEETEAHE2.63% KN _T-F
fixed interests 2.63% per annum and F—A+MNBRSBZEINETE
maturity date on 14 January 2020 TEiE 5 1,569
6,820
Analysed as: DA -
Current portion ENHAER 1,812
Non-current portion JERNERER 7> 5,008
6,820

At 31 March 2019, debt instruments at FVTOCI are
stated at fair values, which have been determined with
reference to the quoted bid prices available and quoted
market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions.

Annual Report 2019

RZFE-NF=A=+—H0 ROV E
AR 2 E Wz 2 FF TR IRAFEA
B A2 EARZARRRERALR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar e B A% SRR MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

17.

18.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

The amount of the Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI
denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the Group is set out below:

17. ERFESGAHMZEREZ
EHxITA#E

AEBREAFEFARMMERREZ
BB TAZSBENATXAEAEED
REEB N E¥ETHE ¢

2019
—g-nE

HK$°000
FET

United State Dollars (“US$”) Ex([ZExT]) 6,820

Details of impairment assessment of debt instruments
at FVTOCI for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in note 34.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

EHEHEE T hAhF=A=+—HILFE
BAFEFAHEMEEWZE 2 EFT AR
B H 2 FIBHNMES34 -

18. ROV EFFABBZEHMEE

2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed investments EhiEE
Equity securities listed in REB LT 2 RAES
Hong Kong 6,112 —
Equity securities listed in RAEIN LT 2 RAE &
overseas 8,870 —
14,982 —

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B A% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_E-NF=ZF=+—HILFE

18.

19.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The fair values of the listed equity securities are
determined based on the quoted bid prices available on
the relevant stock exchange at the end of the reporting
period.

The amount of the Group’s financial asset at FVTPL
denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the Group is set out below:

uss$ ETT
INVENTORIES

Watches Fi&
Accessories and parts Bie 14 X EB 4

Annual Report 2019

18. ROV EFABBZEHMEE

(%)

EHRAES < A FETDRERZH
HIRBEBRE SRS A 5 2 ik
FEmMET °

NAEBNEEM AN EWEHEZ
AEERAVFEFABRRZEREE
ZEEMT

2019
= i
HK$’000
FE T
8,870
19. &
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
803,095 991,952
20,559 9,117
823,654 1,001,069
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
Less: Allowance for impairment
loss

Property rental deposits

PRC value added tax (“VAT”)
recoverable

Advances to suppliers

Earnest money paid

Other receivables

B 5 R RR
B R E R R R R

MEESRS

A Y Bl 2 R B (R A
(TEEH])

[7) 444 8 7 A 3K

EfHER

Hfth U R K

The Group maintains a general credit policy of not more
than 30 days for its wholesales customers. Sales made
to retail customers are mainly made on a cash basis.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

period:

Age

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

ARk
0E30H
31E60H
61 £90H
90 B LA L

158 Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

20. E5 R H AW AR

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
89,885 108,938
(3,839) —
86,046 108,938
22,997 18,915
2,452 2,904
16,797 798
16,467 —
3,817 3,149
148,576 134,704

AEBHEMBERPEITTHEIBI0

Bz —MREEBXR -

TEEPHEN

REHET - AT RESRURFRNZ
WERIZBHZE A2 RE DT

2019 2018
—z-ns [t ST
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
75,335 99,445
9,843 6,233

868 45

= 3,215

86,046 108,938

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B A% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EZ R EHMEWERT (&)

(Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$10,711,000 which are past
due as at the reporting date. These balances are not
considered as in default because historical experience
indicated that such receivables could be recoverable
from the relevant debtors. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$9,493,000 which were past due
as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

31 to 60 days 31£60H
61 to 90 days 61 %290 H
Over 90 days 90 HIA E

R-_ZE—NF=ZA=+—8  K&EH
2B SRR NEHBIEESARE
#{E10,711,00078 7T 2 EUR BR 7% -
MaZzERURZRNE2HRE D BE - 2
EHRETHEREY  WIHBERBE
KRBT ZERERER T B EEEY
ARE - REBWERZELEHRIES
R CIEEw i

R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—8 "  A&£E
LB GRERBENEHRBERBEFARE
#8218 9,493,0008 7L 2 FEWER X -
ZERVERNEFRASBBHERE
EDARTIRBERBEEE - AEBEW
EZSEKRFEEMNERR -

ERBERBEZE S BEERZER
[

2018
—E—-N\F
HK$’000
FET

6,233
45
3,215

9,493

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and HBHEEBEE—_ZE—NF=ZA=+—HLFE
other receivables for the year ended 31 March 2019 B 5 &k EMERKEICAET G ZHBEHRL
are stated in note 34. Bi5E34 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE—ZE—NF=ZFA=+—HIFE

21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21.

22.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less at prevailing market
rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.14% (2018: 0.01% to

0.65%) per annum.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 22.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Payroll and welfare payables
Commission payables
Advances from customers
Renovation work payables
PRC VAT and

other taxes payables
Advertising fee payables
Property rental fee payables
Other payables
Accrued expenses

B 5 RS R

e L& KRB

M

BN

JEAT BT T2 AR X

FEAS R BB E R S E A IR

BNESE
ENMERS
HoAth & A< B 3R
st &

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

RITEHRRRE

RTHEBEACEEASEMBFRS
RREIEA A=A A T W IRRIT
MHEFEMENT0.01EE114E(=
T—NF:001EZE065E)stEZ

FEHIERTTFAK o

BEREMENRIAREN

afE
ES R HMEMRR
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
50,907 65,307
20,559 19,954
25,996 2,116
— 8,780
3,468 5,288
5,970 12,372
1,007 639
1,408 1,996
6,521 6,624
3,190 3,000
119,026 126,076
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E—NF=ZF=F+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Trade and other payables (Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

Age IR R

0 to 60 days 0zZ60H

61 to 90 days 61290 H

Over 90 days Q0 HM k£

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities on sales HEFHR ENAE
of watches

* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments upon the

application of HKFRS 15 (details as set out in note 2).

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance for
sales of watches, giving rise to contract liabilities until
revenue is recognised.

Included in the contract liabilities at 1 April 2018, a

balance of HK$8,780,000 was recognised as revenue
in the current year.

Annual Report 2019

22.

ESRHEHMENRIUAREN

=NAC

EZRAEMENRR(E)

AT RE S EMNERN 2 HRARIRE

ZEMZY) 2 Rl -

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
43,498 54,341
1,227 907
6,182 10,059
50,907 65,307
EHEE

31.3.2019 1.4.2018*
—E-hE —E-N\F
=A=+—H mA—B*
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
7,476 8,780

AREEANEBEBU WS ERE

15 SHBIR 2 W (FHEHNMFE2)

ANREREEEE AR K
EEANBBEERHEEDERA

_U:o

R-ZE— N\FONA—HZALAR
f - $2%88,780,000 FBITRAEE

R

A

—NEFEF R

=
=]
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

23. BANK LOANS 23. RITER
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-N\F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
The bank loans are repayable IRITEFREARATHREEER
as follows (based on the (KBRERBEFEH 2B
scheduled repayment dates set EERB) :
out in the loan agreements):
Within one year —F R 57,700 53,153
Within a period of more than —FREMEA
one year but not exceeding
two years 4,000 16,500
Within a period of more than MEBRERFA
two years but not exceeding
five years 1,667 5,667
63,367 75,320
Comprising: BIE
Amount due within one year R —F ARz 58 (5
shown under current liabilities RRBEE) 53,700 49,153
Amount that contains a BEREREZBBRIZK
repayment on demand HY mrEBaE)HEAR
clause (shown under current RUATEREER :
liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year —F R 4,000 4,000
Within a period of more than fBE—F
one year 5,667 9,667
Total amount shown under AR B E CRIAERE
current liabilities 63,367 62,820
Amount shown under S AIERBBE 2 FKIB
non-current liabilities — 12,500
63,367 75,320
Analysed as: Ry
Secured Vgt 9,667 13,667
Unsecured E: o 53,700 61,653
63,367 75,320
Oriental Watch Holdings Limited RAEXKITEEERDA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E—NF=ZF=F+—HILFE

23. BANK LOANS (Continued)

At 31 March 2019, the Group pledged certain leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$86,714,000 (2018: HK$89,027,000) to banks to
secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group.

All bank loans carrying interest at variable rates, mainly
comprising:

Loans carrying interest at:
— Hong Kong Interbank

23. RITEFR#E)

T—-NF=ZA=+—0 ' ~5E
ERRTTE AR EE A 86,714,000
BT (ZZF—/\F : 89,027,000 7T)
ZAETHELTHRET MERASE
EERRITERRE 2K -

RITEFGRFHNXRHE - TER
S

Effective interest rate
per annum

BRFRR
2018

2019
—E-NEF —E—N\F

BATHEREGFBZER
— BARITEEFRE

Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus FHMEA1752

1.75% per annum 3.38% 2.79%
— Bank’s cost of funding — RITRE A (FRIR

(quoted by bank) plus TTHRE) IFF =

1.50% per annum 1. 50J_ 1.94% 1.94%
— Taipei Interbank Offered — RERITRIZER SN

Rate (“TAIBOR”) plus 1.50% Eﬂz 1.50 [EBR A

divided by 0.946 per annum 0.946 2.30% 2.30%

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the
following undrawn short-term borrowing facilities:

Variable rates 2R
Expiring within one year i

Annual Report 2019

,HH{E. iéfﬁﬁﬁ
2018
—\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
409,860 565,706
ZE-NEFEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets REFRIAE E
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFRIBEAE

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)
assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

24, FEEHE

AT A RER 15 B R 2 IR T T IR 45 84
D

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

24 56

(2,001) (1,664)

UTAREAFERINEFE®RR L E
BRERA(RB)EEREES

Undistributable

profits of

associates and
a joint venture Others Total

BENAR

—HeEgNER
A2 RER Hith L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FAT FET

(note)
(Hit)

At 1 April 2017 RZE—tEMA—H (1,689) 73 (1,616)
Exchange adjustment B R - 7 7
Reversal of withholding tax payment  #[al 2 38 31F: 545 — 545
Charge to profit or loss RB&E MR (520) (24) (544)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=A=+—H (1,664) 56 (1,608)
Exchange adjustment B 5 32 - (3) (3)
Reversal of withholding tax payment  #[al 2 (38315} 352 - 352
Charge to profit or loss PR (689) (29) (718)
At 31 March 2019 R-_E-NE=A=1+—H (2,001) 24 (1,977)

Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax assets for accrued rental
expenses.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fr B A% R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 24, EEFIE#)
At 31 March 2019, the Group had unutilised tax losses RZEBE—NF=ZA=+—H0 ' ~&E

of HK$155,371,000 (2018: HK$178,159,000) available
to set off against future assessable profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of these
unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit stream. Included in unutilised tax losses at
31 March 2019 are losses of HK$54,512,000 (2018:
HK$60,490,000) that will expire in the period from
2020 to 2024 (2018: 2019 to 2023). Other losses of
the Group at 31 March 2018 and 2019 may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$92,555,000 (2018: HK$56,050,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Annual Report 2019

B R BT E 18 155,371,00078 7T

—Z— )\% :178,159,000/8 7T ) 7]
HIKSH R R ERTR A - AR KREETE
B R A M RR - I L% R E
BHEEERERELEHBEE - N =
E-NE=ZA=FT—HZARBAMRB
EEEEER S -_SFE _T
F(ZE—NF: —_FT-NFE-ZFT
— =4 )M E M2 E1E 54,512,000
B (= T — J\F : 60,490,000/
T)e REBR-_E—NERER_-_Z
—NE=ZA=+—HZEMEENE
PRERAESS o

BEFBECEMGRHE BT
NF—R—HBR #ENBRE M
Tk A B AT EUR A 2 B B A B
TEHIHE o B AS & B 0] 4% ) 8 B R
Bt B A B R Fm F e (R R E
¥6892,555,0008 w(= & — A\ F -
56,050,000 7T ) 2 B fl] - B &g =
B ANARER A RAG R E - B0 &
RERE M EHRRAE R EEIREE
TR IR o

[
A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. R4
Number
of shares Amount
RABEE KX
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE10E T EEMK
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and 31 R=-Z—+FMA—H -
March 2019 “E- )\ =ZRA=t+-8BRk
“E-NF=A=1T—H 1,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 RZE—+EMA—-H -
and 1 April 2018 “E-\=R=+—-HRk
—“T-\FMA—H 570,610,224 57,061
Share repurchased and cancelled (note) {780 K =+ 85(47:E) (252,000) (25)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1+—H 570,358,224 57,036

Note: During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 252,000
issued ordinary shares on 25 October 2018 at prices ranging
from HK$1.78 per share to HK$1.80 per share in the market
for a consideration of HK$452,000. The ordinary shares were
cancelled upon repurchase.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

B MER KRR _ZE—NE+A
T HEBEBENTFERITBELES
R1.808B T2 B MR ME EUKRE
452,000 JT i 0] 48 £ A 252,000 % B
BITEEK c ZSTBRRBEOEE T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

26. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY UNDER 26. EEWEBTNTREB—RBHNELR

ASSET ACQUISITION

On 18 September 2018, the Group acquired entire
equity interest in Fully Field Development Limited (“Fully
Field”) at a consideration of HK$4,186,000. Fully Field
holds 3 signage spaces in Hong Kong. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that acquisition of
Fully Field does not constitute business combinations
as defined in HKFRS 3, therefore, the acquisition have
been accounted for as asset acquisition. Details of
acquisition are summarised follows:

R-ZZ-—NFNLA+NE  AEBW
BimEERARAR([WE]) 25K
# - R{ER4,186,000/8 TT  jmE R
BFEFBAZERE - ARAEFAR
Y B T B T P 8 B 7 R o A
F£3 MAREZEBEH Bt - &%
WESHFAREEWSE - 2 WBES
R BT

Assets and liabilities recognised at the date of RUBBHHERAZEERAR
acquisition
Total
wmy
HK$’000
FET
Net assets of Fully Field acquired: BB RIEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment M - LR 4,200
Bank balances IRITEE R 31
Other payables H b FETRR K (45)
Net assets BEFE 4,186
Cash consideration paid EfBREERE 4,186
Bank balances acquired BB IR 1 T4 B (31)

Net cash outflow from acquisition of a BERBETURE-—BWNBAFZ

subsidiary under asset acquisition e FEE

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B 35 AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2019

-

E-AFZA=1—HILFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Company’s special general meeting held on 3
November 2003, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The 2003 Share Option Scheme was valid for a
period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date on 3 November 20083.

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier or advisor of the
Group or a company in which the Company holds
an interest or a subsidiary of such company,
the trustee of the eligible persons or a company
beneficially owned by the eligible persons. The
purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain quality personnel and
other persons to provide incentive to them to
contribute to the business and operation of the
Group. No eligible persons shall be granted an
option in any 12-month period for such number
of shares (issued and to be issued) which in
aggregate would exceed 1% of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the last day of
such 12-month period unless approval of the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of one share;
(b) the closing price per share as stated in the

Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant; and

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

27. LR AER RS

(a)

—BE=FHRANE

BREARRR=ZZEE=F+—A

ZRBITZERERIAS RSB

ZEBRER  NRARIRABER

BerEl( —ET=FERES

g  —TT=_FBERE SR

RMEM_—_ZET=F+—A=H
EEF AR -

BE-ZZTT - FERETE - B
RER T AEB RN ARQTFH
%éZ@ﬂi%@ﬂZW%@ﬂ
ZEﬂﬁé =R=W =

- HEESFEAA Aé%A
iZE&AiA§WAta SV
BRZRR s ZET = FHERE
EIEERSI R BESAS KE
b AL - DUSEN R S ARER 2
¥R EEL TR - BRIBELE™
BMA RIFEMBFARRRKE
B - BRIAER+ =@ A B
N ABEBALTTBERT SR
BHOBB(BBEITRETET)
AHBBAARFRZ T @A
MR%E—BZBEHETBRA1% 2
IR - TR ARFESE
E - ETSBAS RN B R
+¢ BRI B EE R g T A
WERBZ&EHR - EITEE
PRI R 2 BT EERER
UWT=FFZz&aSE

(@ —BEHEE
(b) BRHREHEBEBRAT

FRBERMAB 2 FRE
mE: &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e S AR MY aE

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 27. URGBAEB AR Z (E)
(Continued)

(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(c) the average closing price per share as quoted
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

On 6 April 2011, 32,300,000 share options were
granted and on 29 August 2011, and 23,000,000
share options were granted under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme. The options may be exercised
by the grantees at any time during the option
period up to the termination of employment. All
share options vested immediately at the date of
grant. The estimated fair values of the options
granted on these dates are HK$44,855,000
and HK$48,698,000, respectively. The closing
prices immediately before the date of grant were
HK$3.95 and HK$4.38, respectively.

—EE-FRRETEE)

) BONREERHEBRAR
E&¥EEBIFAEHER
BRAF2EREHK S
{g °

AZTE——FMANHE R

BT =-FBEREE

32,300,000 17 i A% # & & i

mR—_ZE——FN\A=+NB8

23,000,00017 B IR EE R I -

EPE AT R R AE B BE R 1T

BB BEERIEERAL - FT

EEREANREIEBRNRSRBE -

RiZzE B R L 2 BRE 2 G5

N 1B 5 Bl A 44,855,000/ JT

X 48,698,000 7T o B & H

EHAMZWKMED R A3.95%5

=
]

Details of specific categories of options are as

follows:

Number of
share options
Date of grant granted Exercisable period
2R
REBEH BREHE FTESE
6 April 2011 32,300,000 6 April 2011 to
5 April 2021
—ZET——FWmARH “T——FHARARE
—_ZE_-FNMHARA
29 August 2011 283,000,000 29 August 2011 to

—E——F
NAB=+HhA

Annual Report 2019

28 August 2021
—E—— 7 \AZtThBZE
-7 A=Z+N\HRH

T 4.3878 7T °

FrE BB R Z BT

Original Adjusted

exercise exercise

price price

per share per share

RE FE L

BRITEE BRITEE

HK$4.13 HK$3.44

(note i)

41387 3.44 BT

(Bteti)

HK$4.80 N/A

4.80% T TEH
T -NEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE—F-NF=ZA=1—-HLFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 27. LR AEBZARKRB (&)

(Continued)
(a) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) —Z=ST=FBERETEE)
The following tables disclose movements of the TEREEREBEEZE_ZE—N\FK=
Company’s share options granted under the E-NEFE=A=1+—"HILFER
2003 Share Option Scheme held by directors, 2%  REENERFEARE=
employees and consultants during the years TE-FHERETEERLD A
ended 31 March 2018 and 2019: NaEEREES)
Share options granted on 6 April 2011 R-E——FNANARLZIE
BRE
Number
of shares Number
under option of shares
outstanding at Forfeited during under option
Categories of 1 April 2017 and the year ended  outstanding at
participants 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2019
R-Z—+tHF
A—BK
—E-N\F REZE R-EB-h&
=ZR=+-H —B-NF =A=+-A8
RITEEREZ =ZA=t+—HL RITEEREZ
SHEERR ROEA FERWK ROEA
Directors of the RKRBES
Company 11,520,000 — 11,520,000
Other employees HitfE 8 14,400,000 - 14,400,000
Consultants (note i)  E&RE(H1ztii) 5,640,000 (3,000,000) 2,640,000
Total BET 31,560,000 (3,000,000) 28,560,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B AR B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(@) 2003 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Share options granted on 29 August 2011

Categories of participants

27. LR ABER ZIRRZ (&)

(a)

2 HEERR

Other employees HibfE 8
Consultants (note ii) BRI (Bt i)
Total HEt

Notes:

(i) The number of shares under the outstanding options and
the exercise price have been adjusted upon the bonus
issue of shares in July 2011 on the basis of one new
ordinary share for every five ordinary shares held.

(i) The share options were granted to consultants for
services rendered in exploring investment opportunities
for the Group.

The 2003 Share Option Scheme expired on 2
November 2013. The options could be exercised
by the participants at any time during the option
exercisable period and notwithstanding that the
2003 Share Option Scheme had expired. During
the year ended 31 March 2019, 3,000,000 options
under the 2003 Share Option Scheme were
forfeited.

Annual Report 2019

—EE-FRRETEE)

R-ZE——FENA=-+AARH
ZHERE
Number
of shares
under option
outstanding at
1 April 2017,
31 March 2018
and 31 March
2019
R-ZE—+tHF
mA—A -~
—E-N\E
=A=+—-HBK
ZE-NF
=A=+—H
RITEBRES
RZROHE

18,000,000
5,000,000

23,000,000

HiEE -

() KROEBERBESIRZBEOHE R
TEREER-ZE——FtARKRSE
A TR E BRI — RO R
Pz BAER KA IRARAE T -

(i) %EBREDETEE ERHE
RAKEERRER S FIRRHER
A

—EE-FEREFEENR=Z
—=F+—A-HEm -BE=
ST =FEREFICSER
ML ELE (T A] A RE AR A 1T 50 A
BERITEERE - REBEEZZT
—hE=ZA=+—HLFE"
3,000,000 P EEREERIE_-F
T FRERET SIS -

ZE-NEFER
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION
(Continued)

(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
13 August 2013, a new share option scheme was
adopted with effect on 3 November 2013 (the
“2013 Share Option Scheme”) after the expiry of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

Under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, options
may be granted to (i) any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or a company in
which the Company holds an equity interest or a
subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) any
discretionary trust whose discretionary objects
include any director, employee or consultant
of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iv) any
customer, supplier or adviser whose service to
the Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group. The purpose of the 2013
Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
quality personnel and other persons to provide
incentive to them to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. The total number of
shares available for issue under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme as at the date of this report is
57,061,022 shares. No eligible persons shall be
granted an option in any 12-month period for
such number of shares (issued and to be issued)
which in aggregate would exceed 1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the last
day of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. The
exercisable period is determined by the directors
of the Company, which shall not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, and may include
a minimum period for which the options must be
held before it can be exercised. The exercise price
per share payable on the exercise of an option
equals to the highest of:

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar B 7 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

27. URGEBER 2 HARRF (&)

(b)

—E-=FERENE

BEAATINR-_ZE—=FENA
T=ARTBREAFARE LB
BEBRER  RTT=
BREREIERE - —TER-Z
—=F+—A=BHERZHER
BeE(ZE—=FERE:T
2 )R o

BIE - —=FERESE
BIRER T () NEBHAA T
BERAEZRZ ARIKZARZ
B AR(BEBRR ) ZEM
EF - ESSHEMB H(i)Ta
ABREAEBE BB QR ZEM
BE  REEIEBZEEEEE
L (i) A AEE L E A A
ZIEMES  BEEXBEHERE
B2RAF F(v)BARERSH K
SE 2 EERAG mE KB A
EEERRELEELERZ
FREF - HEmKER - —F
— = FRERAETE S ERE k%
BEFSAS LHEMAL - LAEE
HEHARER 2 ¥ RAGEET
BEf c RARERE  —T—=
FRERETRIE T HET /R
1D 428 & 57,061,0220% - 18 1%
ETARA - BRIFEEVE AR EK
Rt - BRIAEMA+ =& A &
MR BEBRALTTSERT S
M ne B (BEBTRETET)
AHRBBARBNZ T @A
Mx%—BZEBEITRA1% 2
BB - TTFEHVBRARRES
B ETEHBEaRTE AR
i F 0 BRI B IREAREE TE
AINERA 2 EHR - 176
BlREREN 2ERTEERSE
RUAT=ZFBFR 2RSS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION 27. URGBAEB AR Z (E)

(Continued)
(b) 2013 Share Option Scheme (Continued) (b) —E—=FERETEE)
(a) the nominal value of one share; (a) —BRERHEE :
(b) the closing price per share as stated in the (b) BMHMNELEEBEBZA
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on ARERAR < EFRIK
the date of grant; and meE &k
(c) the average closing price per share as quoted ) BOREERLEBRNR
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations (BN =Ry RS A=
sheet for the five business days immediately BRI 2ERFHKT
preceding the date of grant. B o
The 2013 Share Option Scheme will remain in TE-—FERETESE—ER
force until 2 November 2023. M BEET-=F+—H=H
Rk o
No option was granted, exercised or lapsed under BT —=FEREEIERA
the 2013 Share Option Scheme since its effective H-_ZT—=—F+T—HA=A#
date on 3 November 2013 and there was no EERERE T —=FERE
outstanding share option as at 31 March 2019. FTEIERE - 1T - R
—ET-NFE=ZA=+—HMEXR
ITEREARAE o
No share-based payment expense was recognised for HE_T—N\FERZTE—NLF=A
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 in relation to =+—HIEFE  SERARBRD
share options granted by the Company. Z BEIETER ARG BEM 2 3

% o

[
A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE—ZE—NF=ZFA=+—HIFE

28.

29.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group issued financial
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to associates. The aggregate amount that
could be required to be paid if the guarantees
were called upon in entirety amounted to New
Taiwan Dollar (“NT$”)150,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$38,624,000; 2018: NT$200,000,000 and equivalent
to HK$54,100,000), which was fully utilised by these
associates at 31 March 2019. The fair value of the
financial guarantee contracts at the grant date is not
significant and in the opinion of the directors, the
default risk of associates at 31 March 2018 and 2019
is considered as low.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

—%FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year

inclusive GES)
Over five years HBBAF

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

28.

29.

F_EFHF(BEER

HREE

R-TBE-—NAE=A=+—H &x&
ERHE AR ER ZRITHEMIR
THELEMEER R_E—NF=
A=4+—H REEXRE2HNKEE
REATEETINZRETAK
([# & ® 1)150,000,0007t(H &
738,624,000 L 0 —F — N\ F:
¥ & #200,000,0007C © I HHF R
54,100,000 T ) E EZ FH & A A
A  UBEREHRELHER
ZAFEITEKN  BEERAHE
RAIRZZE—N\EFEER_T—NF=A
=t—HAZEREREM -

REHERS

REHHR - AEBEDAHBRIRE
ARG R EHE XN REHEER
H - BHIANT

2019 2018
—B-hF —T-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
122,768 133,694
158,304 116,547
586 616
281,658 250,857

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019

#HE=

29.

30.

31.

F-NEF=F=1+—HIFE

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain shops and office premises.
Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 1 to
8 years (2018: 1 to 8 years). Some group entities
are required to pay lease charges based on a fixed
percentage of net sales.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect BEFTRERRERE

290 KEHEZH#E)

KEMENRBEASBRESETHE
MR AEYEEN2EHE o TEi’?E%E
ZEE@)|?1¢8$(_¥—}\¢
E8F) - :F‘Elfim’ﬁhziﬁ
BETEE R NHEEER

30. B &R

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

B 75

of the acquisition of property, WERNEE 2 W EZE -
plant and equipment BERBHEZEARAAX

contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial
statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group principally operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for all qualifying employees,
including directors. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.
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31. RIKERIFTE

AEEXERMARERER(ER
EX)EMERETRNGE - %F
APEINBEER R BY X FEALRG 2 E
ERE - BEAKENEEDH

4)91

—hEFER
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31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

The retirement scheme cost represents contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in a defined
contribution schemes, of which one scheme is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance (the “ORSO” Scheme) and the other is
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF”
Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 15% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme subject to a maximum monthly contribution
amount of HK$1,500 to an individual, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ar B 7 R B

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

RIRBRIF B2

BIRFT B AT AN BT8R Al
EZHERBNTESZHR - WIEER
AR 2= BEUS R ATR % FaT 8 -
AR 2z RS AR RS
B 2 K -

NEE  AEBE2EERHURETS
He — I 8RB B R RET 8K
{fIEEM (TORSOJEH &) - T »—IHA
R-ZZEZTF+ - ARBERHIMLE
ZaT BMRHIRR S 2 BB ATE R A 8
(T818E 5T &) - ZFrTElMEER
XBUXTAER 2 ESHE - B
SEMEESH -

ORSO:TEINEE RAKBEIEH 2 &
AERZREES  #RALXAREEE
KEFEZ25%E15%  HFERAEE
Z RIS FHE ©

ERBEEFEZKE - AEEIRE
B B RN 2 6% A8 TE & 5T 81 H
R mERMEE EL 25 B #5E
&%1,600/87C  MEBMELFR
HK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

31. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 31. RRE R &)

(Continued)

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries AARFBENBARIZEEABATPH
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits BFER s AR EERKENFE 2
scheme operated by the PRC government. The KB o ARRZHBKEAREAEERRE
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute BEH X zATE A HLMRKEFREE
a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement T BZEEIREES - A5E
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only EBERAKRENE 2 EERRIEE
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement TEHAREHR -

benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of BHEZ R 2 A 745,847,000% 7T
HK$5,847,000 (2018: HK$5,863,000) represents (ZZ—/\# : 5,863,000/ L) & A
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group SERAEEEEMNZERE 2 H®
in respect of the current accounting period. oo

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

32. MEFRHMELE BB ZHK

MRADARERETDMELE A
EEY  BRACIIIFRSEE - @
BEMELZBERREREDK
IARRBEEREFENAEE 26
ReREXRTIRABERDEL L
BEenE -

Interest Bank Dividend

payable loans payable Total

FEA3H 2 RITEN ERRE At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET

At 1 April 2017 RZE—t+EMA—H - 110,740 - 110,740
Financing cash flows BERERE

(note) (Hit) (1,843) (36,776) (30,812) (69,431)

Dividends declared EERKE - - 30,812 30,812

Interest accrued FEETH 8 1,843 - - 1,843

Exchange adjustment RS - 1,356 - 1,356

At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=HA=+—H — 75,320 — 75,320
Financing cash flows BERERE

(note) (Hzt) (1,959) (10,285) (196,832) (209,076)

Dividends declared BEERRE - - 196,832 196,832

Interest accrued JERTHIS 1,959 - - 1,959

Exchange adjustment EHRAE - (1,668) - (1,668)

At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=RA=1+—H — 63,367 — 63,367

Note: The cash flows represent dividends paid, repayment of
bank loans, new bank loan raised and interest paid in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Wit BeRBEGARAERERZIENK
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NHE -

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE—F-NF=ZA=1T—-—HLFE

33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXEEER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchange from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank loans disclosed in note 23 net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves including retained profits. The
directors of the Company review the capital structure
on an annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as issue of new debts or
redemption of existing debts.

Annual Report 2019

AEEEEREER  UHERAEEHE
TERBENFELE  RRERK
EEFEED FERS KRR 2O
AEBZEBRBKELFFERFTD
o

AEENERARBRBEERFRE
B Bt 5 23 AT I B 2 SR 1T B A
BRESMFRAELEER) RARAHE
BARGERDZ(EFEESHEITRA
MiFEE(BERERN)) ARAE
EEFRTEARRE - ER/LRST
tE—Hn  EFEEEAKRAREE
BEXRHEEZER - ERES(FHZ
2 ARERERIRERS - BT
MR ETHERERRBESTE
HEEBEARE

® —NEFERH
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost
Debt instruments at FVTOCI

EBIE
Financial assets at FVTPL
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

BRATLA
Loans and receivables (including cash

and cash equivalents) ZRBRLEE)

AFS financial assets AtHESREE
Financial liabilities tREE
Amortised cost B A

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include AFS
financial assets, equity instruments at FVTOCI, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables and bank loans. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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SRTAEER
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
either US$, HK$, NT$ and Renminbi.

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the sales were denominated in functional
currency of the relevant group entities except exposed
to foreign currency risk in relation to US$ arising from
debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at
FVTPL.

The carrying amount of the major foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the
reporting date is as follows:

Us$ =TT

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and
US$ will be immaterial as US$ denominated monetary
assets are held by group entities having HK$ as their
functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared.

The management conducts periodical review of
exposure and requirements of various currencies,
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arise. No sensitivity analysis
was prepared since the directors consider the amount
involved is not significant.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to debt securities with fixed coupon
interest (details of which are set out in note 17). The
management monitors interest rate exposure when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank loans and bank balances
(details of which are set out in notes 23 and 21). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise. The fair
value interest rate risk on bank deposits is insignificant
as the fixed deposits are short-term.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR and TAIBOR
arising from the Group’s bank loans.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for bank loans
at the end of the reporting period. The analyses are
prepared assuming that the bank loans outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used for bank loans when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, no sensitive analysis
is performed as the exposure to interest rates for debt
instruments is considered as insignificant.

For bank loans, if interest rates had been 50 basis
points (2018: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2019
would decrease/increase by HK$265,000 (2018:
HK$314,000).

For bank deposits, no sensitive analysis is performed
as the exposure to interest rates for bank deposits is
considered as insignificant.

Other price risk

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI, financial
assets at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI and
AFS financial assets at the end of the reporting
period exposed the Group to equity price risk. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk profiles.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the
sensitivity rate of 10% is applied in current year.

As at 31 March 2019, if the prices of the respective
debt and equity securities has been 10% higher/lower:

° post-tax profit for the year would increase/
decrease by HK$1,251,000 as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL;
and

° asset revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$682,000 and HK$391,000 as a result of
the changes in fair values of debt instruments
at FVTOCI and equity instruments at FVTOCI,
respectively.

As at 31 March 2018, in view of the amount of AFS
financial assets, the management considers that the
Group’s exposure to equity price risk is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the above sensitivity analysis
is for illustrative purpose only and is unrepresentative
of the inherent equity price risk facing by the Group as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. €T BE#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising
from:

° the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financial guarantee issued by the Group as
disclosed in note 28.

In order to minimise the credit risk of trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 (2018: incurred
loss model) on debtors with significant balances
individually and/or based on provision matrix. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit standings and banks
with good reputation.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across diverse
industries and geographical areas.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. T A%
Financial risk management objectives and policies EEREEEERBEK(E)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EEEERREFTE(E)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposure of THRFIINAEB 2 e EERMEHE
the Group’s financial assets and financial guarantee REABE ZEZERR  EXRATE
contracts, which are subject to ECL assessment: H=EEEEE
Gross
External Internal 12m or carrying
2019 credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL amount
“E-NE 1285
RESES
HNBEETR ABEEIR FEFB BEREE
Notes HK$’000
Hri FET
Debt instruments at &2 FE AE M
FVTOCI Hl&EzERIA
Investments in listed ~ FHEBEE 12m ECL
debts 12 i A 7B
17 Baa3-At N/AT & A FEER 5,251
Investments in FLEMEBRE 12m ECL
unlisted debts 1218 A B
17 A3 N/ATER FEER 1,569
Financial assets at REHAATEZ
amortised cost SRMEE
Bank balances RITER 12m ECL
12 {8 A 8 5
21 Baa3-Af N/ATN FEER 1,080,094
Other receivables H it R RN 12m ECL
(Note a)  12{EATEH
20 N/AE A (friza) FEEAE 17,655
Trade receivables BHREYBER Lifetime ECL
(Note b)  TFEEHIFEH
20 N/AZN A (Hiztb) FEER 89,885
Other item HitEH
Financial guarantee ~ BIBIERA L 12m ECL
contracts (Note c)  12{ER7EE
28 N/A7N i (Hiztc) FEER 38,624
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management
of the Group makes periodic collective assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on the historical
default experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example, the Group has considered the
consistently low historical default rate in connection with
payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding other receivables are insignificant.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group applies
the simplified approach to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
ECL for trade receivables.

Management assessed the expected losses on trade
receivables collectively by estimation based on historical credit
loss experience, general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

In addition, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that there has no default occurred for trade receivables past
due 90 days or more and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable due to long term/on-going relationship and good
repayment record from these customers.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its
customers because these customers consist of a large number
of customers with common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms. The Group’s
trade receivables are grouped under a provision matrix
based on shared credit risk characteristics by reference to
past default experience and current past due exposure of
the debtors. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed collectively based on provision matrix as at 31 March
2019 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

Gross

carrying

amount

BEREEE

HK$’000

FET

Trade receivables Z 5 R K

Not past due i 7 480 B 78,219

1 — 30 days past due #EI1=30H 10,509

31 — 60 days past due #HI31 £ 60H 1,157

89,885

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-looking
information is used by the management of the Group to assess
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date. The grouping is regularly reviewed by the
management of the Group to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. €T BE#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

MM ERERE B RRBE(E

FEE R EFE(E)

Notes: (Continued) W ()
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TRETMBEIHAEERE SRR
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified A FEREHEERE & -
approach.
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
FEBEYE FESRES
FEBR FEBE
(GEEERME) (EERE) FEC)
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FAET FET
As at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 RIEE B 4£R|5 395 R
—E-\F=A=+—H — — —
Adjustment upon application of A FE BB 5 RS 22 R
HKFRS 9 F 51 2 FE 3,808 — 3,808
As at 1 April 2018 — as restated R-ZZE—N\FWMA—H
— KRE5| 3,808 — 3,808
Impairment losses recognised BRI EE 1R 253 — 253
Exchange adjustment RS (222) — (222)
As at 31 March 2019 RZZT—NF=A=+—H 3,839 — 3,839
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is MEBHBETREBARREENEKNH
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial B mERE R A (INERABREAF
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. B ETER) @ AIAREBEMNE S EK
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has BEZK o
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
(c)  For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount that ) MUBEREAMS  AEER-ZT

the Group has guaranteed under the respective contracts was
approximately HK$38,624,000 (2018: HK$54,100,000) as at 31
March 2019. At the end of the reporting period, the directors
of the Company have performed impairment assessment, and
concluded that there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of the financial guarantee contracts.
Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial guarantee
contracts issued by the Group is measured at an amount equal
to 12m ECL. The management of the Group considers the
probability of default is low and accordingly, loss allowance
was considered as insignificant.
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34.

E-AFZA=1—HILFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group’s debt instruments at FVTOCI mainly
comprise instruments that have a low risk of default
and the counterparties have a strong capacity to repay
(e.g. financial instruments that are of investment grade
or issuer with good credit history and capacity to
repay), and accordingly, loss allowance was considered
as insignificant.

The management of the Group considers the bank
balances that are deposited with the financial
institutions with high credit rating to be low credit
risk financial assets. The management of the Group
considers the bank balances are short-term in nature
and the probability of default is negligible on the basis
of high-credit-rating issuers, and accordingly, loss
allowance was considered as insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
has available unutilised short-term bank loan facilities
of HK$409,860,000 (2018: HK$565,706,000).
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. €T BE#)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. The amounts included below for variable
interest rate bank loans are subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

Weighted ~ On demand or

average effective
interest rate
ETY
17k
2019 “3-0f
Non-derivative financial FiEEREE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BAREHERES NA T8
Bank loans L 2.46%
Financial quarantee contracts BB ERAH NATER
2018 Z5-0\E
Non-derivative financial FTELHER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REHRNER NA R
Bank loans BhEs 2.42%
Financil quarantee contracts ~ ETEERAH NIA TR

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

34. @I E#E)

BEREERERERE(E)

mEBELEE(E)

REE L RFIFE RS

Total
less than 103 3 months fto  undiscounted Carrying
1 month months to 1 year 5 years cash flows amount

FEXg FERRE
HRER 12388 SBAE1F 1558 RELE ]
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK8 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
81,898 1,201 6,182 - 89,307 89,307
9,667 45,604 8,433 - 63,704 63,367
91,565 46,831 14,615 - 163,011 162,674
36,624 - - - 36,624 -
71,003 907 10,060 - 81,970 81,970
13,667 37,130 12,887 12,654 76,938 75,320
84,670 36,637 2,947 12,664 168,908 167,290
54,100 - - - 84,100 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ll\li\

B RIS SRR MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2019

BE=

34.

F-NEF=F=1+—HIFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers
that it is more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of
the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is
a function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2019, the aggregate undiscounted principal amount
of the bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
amounted to HK$9,667,000 (2018: HK$13,667,000).
Taking into account the Group’s financial position,
the directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that the bank loans will be
repaid in two years (2018: three years) after the
reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment period set out in the loan agreement. At that
time, the aggregate undiscounted principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to HK$9,901,000 (2018:
HK$14,131,000).

Annual Report 2019

34. €T B (&)

BHEREEBEEREE(E)

mEBELEE(E)
REEE RFIF RS (&)

A ERMHBEERES DT AZSER/R
RHHFHTHERERSBERFAKER
BLZHABNE2BERBEZESS
B KBERAKRZEL  ~5ER
BTKT%%?HK%TZEHi
B o AT ULAFTRIRERER A T
RUBERRER X ZHFHIERE
EE%%&W%%#LJZT*H%

o

ZEREERBRRZIBITERR

LE|ER D 4T R EF AR E SRk
BAIJZEHEBEARA - RZZT—Hh
“A=+—H8 WEKREXKERE
MmZﬁﬁEﬁZ%%ﬁKﬁﬁ%
/9,667,000 (= & — J\ F:
13,667,000 87T) - KEEAEE 2
BBikRiE - AABESHERITT
AR REITE BB 2 RANRER °
RAARIESZHE  ZEFERITERBIZ
BERBZAABCEAECERIRE
WPEMFECE—N\F: ZF)R
BiE - - BN RBERAERFBRE
7t 42 %8 18 59,901,000 T( =&
—\%E : 14,131,000 7T ) °

BE @
)

—
.

—hEFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. €T BA#)

BEREERERERE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

194

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) TEELEE(E)
Weighted
average Total
effective 1to 3 months to 1to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
g AERRE
ERAE 123 3AZIE 185% RESH BafE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET AT AT TET
2019 ZE-NF
Bank loans ROER 1.94% 1,045 3,107 5,749 9,901 9,667
Weighted
average Total
effective 1to 3 months to 1to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 5years  cash flows amount
il 37 AERRE
L LYk 123f8F  3fAZ1% 125% REAR R
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
AT TET AT AT TET
2018 “E-)0%
Bank loans RITEH 1.94% 1,065 3,165 9,901 14,181 13,667

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

34. s T AE#E)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair

values of these financial assets are determined.

Financial assets Fair value
tREE AYE
2018
“E3)\F
HK$'000
AT
() Equity instruments at FVTOCI — listed 4 N/A
investments, equity securities listed in
Hong Kong
RATEALME ARG RATA ki
- tiRE  RER LT RAR S
(i) Equity instruments at FVTOCI — 3,866 N/A
unlisted investments, managed fund
portfolio
BATEFAL 2 ARG RATA 0 ki
- kETRE ERESREAR
(i) Debt instruments at FVTOCI — listed 3,683 N/A
debt securities in overseas
BOTESARM2 ARG BHIA A
- NEI LT RHE S
(iv)  Debt instruments at FVTOCI — listed 1,568 N/A
debt securities in Hong Kong
BATES AR 2 ARG BHIA ki
- RER LT BBES
(v)  Debt instruments at FVTOCI — 1,569 N/A
unlisted debt securities
BATEFAALM2 ARG ERIA AR
- kETERES

Annual Report 2019

Fair value
hierarchy

AYERR

Level 1

S
=5

Level 2

¥
o
T

Level 1

¥
=

Level 1

18

Level 2

EPEN

BERMEERU AT EH B A
SRAEZDTE

REBMKR - AEELDEBEEN

AFEHE - TRRHKEBOAET
hELRMEET AFEOER -

Valuation techniques and key inputs

fHEADRIERAHE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RETMEHEEAE

Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions (note)

fERlE SRRERIE RSB W)

Quoted bid prices in an active market

REMEMEEAE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

Lk PAYN

Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions (note)

fFRRE L SRIRRICTHREWE)

Z-NEFRH

A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

34. @I E#E)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

Financial assets

SHEE

(v)

(vii)

Wil

Financial assets at FVTPL — listed
investments, equity securities listed in
Hong Kong and overseas
ROTES ARG EREE - tTR
B RERREN L RAE S

AFS financial assets — listed
investments, equity securities listed in
Hong Kong
THHESREE - tRE  RER
Lz BAES

AFS financial assets — unlisted
investments, managed fund portfolio
A HESRHARE - FLTRE ER
EEREMR

Fair value

A7

14,982

N/A

TER

N/A

TER

2018

“B)E
HK$ 000

TAT

N/A

FER

12,293

Fair value
hierarchy

AYERR

Level 1

Level 1

¥
e

Note: Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions represent the fair values of the respective funds,
based on the observable quoted prices of the underlying

investments in active market.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair

value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial

statements approximate to their fair values.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

REEMEENUATFEHFEZEAER
ERMEEZAFEGE)

Valuation techniques and key inputs

FERORTZAAUE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RRMEHEEAE

Quoted bid prices in an active market

RN EAE

Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are financial
institutions (note)

fERRE SHRERILTEEE K

Wi ERERZ SMEBRHEZTISREE
EREERENERT IS 2 B RRE
EBEZEEEATE-

WHBEERLEREUQNFEFEZR
fEEREEREREEZATE

ARRBEERR  NEAFBRRT
BHERAR R EREEREHE
B2 REERAFERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE-E—NF=ZF=F+—HILFE

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2019
and 2018 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital
AL/
HEARER B/ Hmeny ERARARRL/HRRCAER
Di
2019 2018 2019
280 ot Syt 80
%
La Suisse Watch Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100
Limited HKS1,000 HKS1,000
BETRRAT it ZER1,00057 FEH1 00T
Oriental Watch (China) Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares -
Limited HK$1,000 HKS$1,000
Rh&A(PE)RRAT &k EER1000RT  BER100ET
Oriental Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100
HK$2,000 HKS1,000
Rh&ARRAT &k RERL0AT  EER100ER
Oriental Watch (Macau) Company ~ Macau Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 50
Limted MOP$25,000 HOP$25,000
RhA(AFARAA #A Eikosondnn  ERR000EMT
Gathay Watch Company Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100
HK$2,000 HKS1,000
AR%RRAT 3 EER2000%T BRI 00ET
Sharp Beauty Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share Ordinary share -
HEKSt HKS
ERERAT &t LaR1En EaR1ET
Unex Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares -
HKS? HKS?
FUARRRAT & LaRokn ER2An
Full Field Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100
HK$8
e 3 EaRekT -

Annual Report 2019

35. TEMBEA A

R-ZE-NEFRZF-NF=H
=+—B ARFRETEMBRF T

RBERRR]) ZFBWAT :

Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
registered capital held by the Company

KARFAERIRARE AREA LA

rectly

4

2018
i S
%

100

50

100

Indirectly
Bk

2019 2018
ZE-1E “5-)\&
% %
100 100
50 5
100 100
100 100
ZE-NEFEEFR

Principal
activities

b8

Watch trading

i

Watch trading and
investment holcing

FHBHRRERR

Watch trading

ThEH

Watch tracing

Tk

[&

Watch tracing
i
Investment holaing
REER
Property holding
i
Property holding

L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Issued and fully paid share capitallregistered
Name of subsidiary operations and paid-up capital
i/
HRARER B/aeny ERARARES/HRRCHES
2019 2018
ZR-0f 5-)\E
HERBRAAEES The PRC (o) Registered and Registered and
BRA paid-up capital paid-up capita
(Shanghei Oriental Watch Intemational US5200,000 1/5$200,000
Trading Co., Ltd)
LERBRAAREAERAT  wEKD) AfREdES ifREARES
0000%7 20000057
Fh&i(E)EFERAT The PRC (ote] Registered and Regitered and
(Oriental Watch (Ching) Trading Co., paid-up capital paid-up capital
Ltd) US§54,000,000 1US$54,000,000
RhEA(E)ERARAT nEH) HMREMES ifREAES
54,000000%7 54,000 000%T

35. FEMB AT E)

Note: These companies were established in the PRC in the form of

wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/ Principal
registered capital held by the Company activities
KARHERARAEE/AREA L 1558

Directly Indirectly
B Bk
019 2018 2019 2018
280 5-)E 280 5)E
% % % %
- - 100 100 Watch trading
TR
- - 100 100 Watch trading
7
et - ZERRIRFBIANEBERE 2R
BR3Z ©

RAXRTEBEBRQA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. TEMIB AR &)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
A majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong,
the PRC and Taiwan. The principal activities of these
subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activity

FEEK EEREBUMR

Watch trading Hong Kong
F R BB

Taiwan
Investment holding Hong Kong
REZR o

The PRC

Y
Inactive Hong Kong
Tmex B

The PRC

[

Annual Report 2019

Principal place of business

FREJNEEABRIBEFERAEER
BAEEZARAMBLRR - BEFR
o MESEA B AR 2FFE - 8
SEHEFBNHIE -

& Y 2 R AR B (AR B P R
EEMAREEERES

REBHAR - XRFEHAREEM
WIERZHMHE AT o KEHZ
EMBRARIREE FERAER
& o ZEMBARZ EEEBH
™

Number of subsidiaries

MEAREE
2019 2018
=t T \F
1 1
6 9
1 1
7 10
8 16
- 1
8 17
16 28
—E-NEEH
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE - NF=F=F+—HILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel
The key management personnel are the directors of

the Company. The remuneration of directors during the
year was as follows:

Short-term benefits %= HAtE 7
Post-employment benefits BEER 1218 A

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited

36. FRAEALRS

TEEEBABZHE

EEFHaFMEEegEREARX
RARMZBERETE :

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —ET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
25,525 24,905
1,058 1,058
26,583 25,963

ExFHaTFMEEegEREARX
ARMHBBREE -

& \m
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

37. RR T MBIk FR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R REE 444 554
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZI&E 619,279 649,595
Equity instruments at fair value AT EFAEMZEK
through other comprehensive wmZRATH(KE (c)
Income (note (c)) 3,866 =
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE S REAE
(note (c)) (KiiZ(c)) - 4,414
623,589 654,563
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUHI B A T FKIE
(note (b)) (W12 (b)) 456,361 406,608
Bank balances and cash IRITEBR AR S 225 196
456,586 406,804
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables H i EMRR 16,008 15,131
Amounts due to subsidiaries A~ BE B A B FRIE 96,993 92,919
113,001 108,050
Net current assets REBEEFE 343,585 298,754
Net assets EEFE 967,174 953,317
Capital and reserves BXK#1E
Share capital & AR 57,036 57,061
Reserves (note (a)) (At (a) 910,138 896,256
Total equity XA 967,174 953,317
Annual Report 2019 —E-NFER 201



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B IS R R MY

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BEZ_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

KBiaz -
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and (@) ARRRERAFERBEFE LD
the prior years are as follows: mr
Share Capital Asset
Share option redemption Contributed revaluation Retained Dividend
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve profits reserve Total
RAEE RRERE EARERE HARHR EEEMRFE REEF RERG it
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FAT FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2017 RoB—t+5
MA—A 549,396 83,554 425 122,183 1,862 59,736 19,400 836,556
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - 89,907 - 89,907
Change in fair value of W EEELHEE
available-for-sale ZRTEEY
financial assets = = = = 605 = = 605
Total comprehensive ~ FR2ERELHE
income for the year = = = = 605 89,907 = 90,612
2017 final dividend BR%-_T—+%&
paid RER S = - - - - = (2,282) (2,282)
2017 special dividend ~ BiR%E-T—+%
paid BRI S — — — — — - (17,118) (17,118)
2018 interim dividend ~ EiR%E-T-N\E
paid hERE - - - - = (11,412) = (11,412)
2018 final dividend RE%E-Z-N\&
proposed RS = - - - - (45,649) 45,649 =
2018 special dividend  HEE-E—)\&
proposed BRIRE - - = = = (85,592) 85,592 -
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\F
=A=f-H 549,396 83,554 425 122,183 2,467 6,990 131,241 896,256
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - 211,689 = 211,689
Change in fair value of  &RATE ALt
equity instruments 2ENEZ
at fair value RATEZ
through other ATEZS
comprehensive
income - - - - (548) - - (548)
Total comprehensive A2 EKE
income (expense) (A%)eE
for the year - - - - (548) 211,689 - 211,141
2018 final dividend BRE-Z-N\F
paid REBRE = = = = - - (45,649) (45,649)
2018 special dividend BiR%E-T—/\F
paid AR - = = = = - (85,592) (85,592)
2019 interim dividend ~ EiRE-F-hE
paid IR & = = = = - (15,970) - (15,970)
2019 interim special ~ BRE-E-NE
dividend paid R 8 - - = = = (49,621) - (49,621)
2019 final dividend REE-Z-h&E
proposed RS = - - - - (45,629) 45,629 =
2019 special dividend ~ ¥E% -T—h 4
proposed BRIRE - = = = - (76,998) 76,998 -
Share repurchased E) &)
and cancelled (427) = = = = = - (427)
Forfeiture of share R
options = (4,166) = = = 4,166 = =
At 31 March 2019 RZE-h&F
=A=f-H 548,969 79,388 425 122,183 1,919 34,627 122,627 910,138

37. ZRF BB R K2

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_FE—NF=A=+—HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The contributed surplus arose as a result of the difference
between the aggregate net tangible assets of the subsidiaries
by the Company and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares which were issued to acquire those subsidiaries under
the group reorganisation in 1993.

The Management of the Company considered that the
expected loss on amounts due from subsidiaries is insignificant
having assessed the financial positions of these subsidiaries.

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, equity investments
with a carrying value of HK$4,414,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale financial assets to equity instruments at
fair value through other comprehensive income. All of these
investments were previously measured at fair value under
HKAS 39. The fair value gains of HK$2,467,000 relating to
those investments previously carried at fair values continued to
be accumulated in asset revaluation reserve.

Annual Report 2019

37. X RF 2 MBMR &R E)

BABBEAARRMNBRARFAVEE
BEEAR-NAN=FRBEEEEA/K
BREWBRRMETZARBRDZ
HRECHEME L EZBEMESE °

ARABEBRERR  NAGEZERBER
BRI IEAOR R - YK 2 B IR
TAHIBEERL TEX -

NNBREREERBHRELERNFIORE
H - BRTEE & 4,414,000 7% 7T &) IR AN 3%
EEAARHESREESH O BARR
RFEFAEMEERECRATA
EZERELMNOBRERTEGLER
FIRUARFEE - BERKAF
BEINRNZEREABZ AV EK R
2,467,000 8 THENEESHFEET
Rt o

Z-NEFRH
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

204

MHERE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+t—HLEFE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-RF ZE—RF ZE—tF T N\F =k
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS E4
Revenue W5 3,109,031 3,031,752 3,142,295 2,891,692 2,437,184
Profit (loss) before &% Al % 7
taxation (&) 9,650 (12,717) 25,449 164,691 159,975
Income tax FriSfiF X
expense (5,317) (3,042) (9,352) (26,000) (21,936)
Profit (loss) for the £ A%l (E518)
year 4,333 (15,759) 16,097 138,685 138,039
Attributable to: AN ALTFES -
Owners of the ZiN/NEIEZ= N
Company 4,508 (15,528) 16,383 138,763 138,099
Non-controlling IR R
interests (175) (231) (286) (78) (60)
Profit (loss) for the A% F|(EE)
year 4,333 (15,759) 16,097 138,685 138,039
At 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-HF ZE-RF —E—+F —FE-N\F = Lke
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND EERERE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BERE 2,706,073 2,533,582 2,354,738 2,539,937 2,408,229
Total liabilities BEEHE (494,282)  (376,010) (207,724) (222,985) (194,628)
2,211,791 2,157,572 2,147,014 2,316,952 2,213,601
Equity attributable A F#HEA A
to owners of the  FE{5#EzS
Company 2,210,452 2,156,518 2,146,006 2,315,977 2,212,733
Non-controlling FE 122 A% 2
interests 1,339 1,054 1,008 975 868
2,211,791 2,157,572 2,147,014 2,316,952 2,213,601

Oriental Watch Holdings Limited
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